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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Shareholders and Directors of
Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries

Monterrey, N.L., February 17, 2017

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries (The
“Company”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2016
and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of income, of comprehensive income, of changes in
stockholders’ equity and of cash flows for the years then ended and the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and its
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with

International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IFRS").

Basis for Opinion

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Ethics Standards of Mexican Institute of Public Accountants, A. C.
together with other requirements applicable to our audits of consolidated financial statements in
Mexico, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those requirements
and standards. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, S. C., Avenida Rufino Tamayo No. 100, Colonia Valle Oriente, C.P. 66269 Garza Garcia, Nuevo Leén
T: (81) 8152 2000 F: (81) 8152 2075 www.pwc.com/mx
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Agreements for the production of PTA-PET

materials and Technology Integ Rexi®
license with AI&G Resins USA. LLOC

As mentioned in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements,
during 2015, the Company entered into
agreements with M&G Resins USA,
LLC (M&G), through which the latter
agrees to supply 500 thousand tons of
PET (manufactured with 420 thousand
tons of PTA) during the five years
following the two plants’ (PTA/PET)
startup of operations, which is
expected to occur in 2018. PTA is one
of the main materials for the
production of PET manufactured by
the Company. As a result of this
agreement, the Company paid M&G
$8,989 million (US$435 million), of
which $7,439 million (US$360
million) was recognized as intangible
assets, amortizable on the basis of the
production volumes and $1,550 million
(US$75 million) was recognized as
prepayment for the purchase of
inventories. The calculations required
to determine the classification of these
payments, of the fair values and the
assumptions used are complex, as a
result of which, the Company hired the
services of an independent expert.

We focused on this area due to the
importance of the amount of the
payments made and due to the fact
that classification of the payments,
either in intangible assets or
prepayments, based on their fair value,
required the application of significant
judgments by Management.

In particular, we concentrated our
efforts on the significant judgments
related to the following aspects:
methodologies used, interest rate range,
estimated volumes of production and
costs,

As part of our audit, we obtained and read the
contractual agreements pertaining to the transaction.

Due to the significant judgments used in the valuation
models for the determination of fair values, and with the
support of our valuation experts, we questioned the
premises, assumptions and criteria used by Management
and the independent expert, following the procedures set
down below, among others:

* We evaluated and considered the design and
operating effectiveness of the internal controls over
identification, classification and valuation of these
transactions. In particular, we considered the key
controls related to interest rates, production volumes
and costs.

e  We verified the capability and objectivity of the
independent expert.

e We compared that the methodologies applied to the
determination of the fair values of these payments
correspond to methodologies and recognized to value
assets of similar characteristics in the industry.

e We challenged the significant judgments related to
the most relevant assumptions, premises or
variables, and we compared the ranges of interest
rates, estimated production volumes and costs with
independent market sources commonly used and
accepted for assets with these characteristics for the
industry to which the company pertains.

e We reprocessed a sample of items to determine their
fair value and classification, whether in intangible
assets or short or long-term prepayments.

e We defied Management's financial projections,
including the residual value, comparing it to the
performance and historical trends of the businesses,
obtaining Management's explanations, if any, of the
variations, as well as the supporting evidence.

e We discussed with Management, the sensitivity
calculations, assessing the degree to which the
assumptions would need to be modified for an
adjustment to be considered for its evaluation.

Page 2
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information presented. The other information comprises the
Annual Report presented to Comisién Nacional Bancaria y de Valores (“CNBV”) and the Annual
Information presented to shareholders (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon), which is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

However, in connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility is
to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information not yet received, we will issue the report required by the CNBV and
if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to those charged with governance and, if required, describe the issue in our report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and for such internal control as Management determines is

necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Page 3
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Company and subsidiaries to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and

performance of the Company and subsidiaries audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Page 4
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Héctor Rébago
Saldivar.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, S. C.

4 Héctor Rabago Saldivar
Audit Partner
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Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Fihancial Position
At December 31, 2016 and 2015

In mifiions of Mexican pésos

At December 31,

Assat Note 2018 2015
CURRENT ASSETY ) »
Cash and cash.equivalents 6 Ps 2,835 Pg 8,850
Restricted cash and cash equivalents & B 3
Trade and other recelvables, nat 7 15,918 13384
Inventories _ : 9 14,853 12,088
Derivative finanslal instruments 16 56 203
Prepayments 10 457 338
Total curreint asset 34,221 32.664
NOM-CURRENT ASSET; _ _ _
Propérly, plant and squipmant, nat. 11 40,689 31,322
Goodwill and intangible assets, net 12 11,875 8812
Deferred income taxes 21 433 . 361
Prepayments 10 1,570 1,228
Other assets 13 B.702 B07.
Total non -éu;r.ent' asset . 57,279 42930
Total asset ’ Bs 91.500 Pg 74804
Liability and Stockholders' equity
CURRENT LIABILITY: _ T
Debt - o 19 Ps 2,787 Ps 678
Suppliers and ofher. accounts payable 17 15,482 11,683
Darlvative financial instrumeants 16 e - 848
income tax payable 22 B84 1,371
Provisions 18 383 338
Total current ligbility 19,407 14.928
NON-CURRENT UABILITY:

Dabt ) ' 18 21,551 18,276
Derivative financial instruments 16 846 711
Provisions. 18 7 185
Deferred Income {axes 21 5,883 4,707
Income tax payable 22 553 28
Employee benefits 20 1,227 1,108
Other habilities 23 504 452
Total non-current fiability N 30,371 25467
Total liability 49,778 40,305
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Controlling interest: - )

" Capital stock 24 6,048 8,052
Share premium 8,071 8,071
HAetainad earirigs 24 11,292 10,009
Other resarves. 24 10,862 4 825
Total controlling interest 37,073 23,954
Non-controlling inferest: 14 4.848 4,545

Total stockholders’ equity 41722 84,499

Ps. . 91500  Pg 74894

ool (2

~Edhardo Alberto Escalants (
Chisf Financial Officer
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Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

In millions of Mexican pasos

Note 2016, 2015

Revenue 3u) Ps 90,182 Ps 83,580
Cost of sales. 26 {76.943) (73.029)
Gross profit 18,249 10,561
Selling expenses o5 (1,578) (1,377)
Administrative éxpenses 28 (2,043) (1,839)
Other income, net 27 235 245
Operating profit 8,863 7,590
Finance income 28 3,565 2,795 '
Finance cost 28 (6.074Y {4.857)
Finance cost, nat (2.509) (1,862}
Share of losses of associates
accounted for by the equity method {8) (23)
Profit before income taxes 7,351 5,705
Income taxes 30 (2,358) (2,040)
Net consolidated profit Ps 4,993 Ps 3,665
Profit attributable to:
Controlling-interest o Ps 3,625 Ps = 2,748
Nen-coritrolling interest 1.368 917

Ps___ 4993 Ps __ 3665
Basic and diluted earnings per share in pesos Ps 171 Ps..___130
Weighted average of outstanding shares o _
{in millions of sharesy ' 2147 Z.118

The at:com'panyi'ng notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chief Bxecutive Officer

: ﬁFc'io Allber_to Escai .
Chief Financial Officer
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Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Iri millicns of Mexican pesos

Note 2016 2018
Net consalidated profit Ps 4993 Ps 3865
Otheritems. of comprehensive income of the year:
ltems that will not be reclassified to the statement of income:
‘Remeasurement of obligations for employee bensfits, o
net of taxes 20,:30 64 (3
ttéms that will be reclassified o the statement of incame:
Effect of derivative financial instruments deésighated o _
-as cash flow hedges, net of taxes 16; 30 384 (400}
. Translation effect of foreign entities 24,30 6,233 3,843
Share of other comprehensive results of associates (2) -
Total other comprehensive iricome for:the year 6.679 3440
Total comprehensive income for the year Ps 116872 Ps_ 7105
Attributable to:
Controlling interest. Ps g,527 Ps. 5828
Naon-cantralling interest 2.145 1.477
Total comprehensive income for the year Ps {1672 Ps 7,108
The accompanyirig pbtes gee@l/integral pan of these consolidated financial statemnents.

ardo Albefto Escalante Ua
Chief Financial Officer k

José.deledis Valdsz Simancas
Chief Executive Offjcer
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Alpek, S. A. B.de C. V. and subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

in'mitiions of Mexican pesos

Cash flows from_gperating activities

Mote 2018 2015
Profit befors income taxes Ps 7,351 Ps 5705
Depréciation and afmortization 11,12 2,560 2,254
Tmpairment of property, plant.ard equipment 27 2 130
Allowance fordoubitful recelvables & {273)
Loss {gain) on-sale of property, plant and equnpment 2 e} 1 (381)
Share of losses of associgtes accounted for by the equity method 13 3 23
Finance-cost, net 2,265 1,808
Gainon changes in the tair value of defivative financial instruments. {4). {178)
Employaes' profit sharing and provisions’ (385) {385)
Subtotal 11,819 8,803
(Icreass) decrease in trade receivablas, (1:313) 2,765
Decrease in accolnts réceivable frdm related parties 1,051 572.
(Increase) decrease in other accounts receivable - {853) 81
Increase in inventories (1.43%) {103)
Increase (decréase) in accounts payable 772 {1,242)
Dedrease in accounis payabie fo related parties {695) {898}
Employees’ profit sharing paid & {4)
Prepayments {225) {1,102)
Income tax paid {2:592) (8?4)
Net cash flolvs generated from tperating activities 6019 8,178
Cash flows from Investing activities
Interest recaived . 230 202
Acqulgition of property, plant and squipment N {4,543) {1,523
Actuisition of intangibfe assets Zayand2by {1,438) {1,857)
Business acqmsmons net of cash acqulred 2erand3h) {390} {805)
Invesimaritin associates ) : {82} {27}
Derivative findncial instruments 108 {167}
Proceeds from logns (paid).to related parties 1,128 (30)
Notes receivables {.220) 8
Net.cash flows used in investing activities (6,212) {3.999}
Cash flows-from financiné activities o
Proceeds from debt 3,534 1,918
‘Payments of debt. (2,540} {1,850
imterest paid {1,213} 4,017}
Dividends paid by Alpek, S. A.B.da G. V. £1,958) {1,473)
Dividends paid to the non-caniroliing interest ) {2,049; {878)
Repurchage of shares o4 (48 R
Progeeds from related paities. 8 73 -
Net cash flows used In financing activities. {4,209) {3,505)
{Decrease) increase.in cash and cash equivalents (4,402) 674
Exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents BT 233
Cash and cash Equivalents at begtnning of year 6.650. 5.744
Cash and cash equ u-" ar Es. 2,938 Ps B850
‘//', <7/
The ac_:co'mp ﬁ 3 Bgral part of these consolidated financial statemapts
‘ 1/ Lutuﬂ@
Jozé de Jeglis Valdez S:mancas rdo ‘Alberte Escalants Cag

Chief Efeifutive Offiser

Chief Financial Oﬁlcer
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Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
At December 31, 2016 and 2015

In millions of Mexican pesos, except where otherwise indicated
Note 1 - General information

Alpek, 8. A. B, de C. V. and subsidiaries (“Alpek™ or the “Company”) operates through two major business
segmeénts: po]yester chain products and plastic products. The polyester chain business segment, comprises’
the producuon of purified terephthalic acid (PTA), polyethylene terephthalate (PET) and polyester fibers,
which sérves the food and beverage packagmg, textile and industrial filamerit markets. The Plastics &
Chemicals business segment, comprises.the production of polypropylene (PP}, expandable polystyrene
(EPS), eaprolactam (CPL), fertilizers and other chemicals, which serves a wide range of markets, including
the consumer goods, food and beverage packaging, automotive, construction, agriculture, oil industry,
pharmaceutical markets and others.

Alpek is the most important petrochemical company in Mexico and the second largest in Latin America, is
the main integrated producer of pelyester in North America. Besides, it operates the largest EPS plantin
the contifient, and one of the Jargest PP plants in North America and is the only producer of Caprolactam in
Mexico.

The shares of Alpek, 8. A.B. de C. V. are traded on the Mexican Stock Exchange and has Alfa, S, A. B, de
C. V. (“Alfa”) as its main holding company.

Alpek, S. A, B, de C. V. islocated in Avenida Gémez Morin Sur No. 1111, Col. Catrizalgjo, San Pedro Garza
Garcla, Nuevo Lebn, Mexico-and operates plants located in Mexico, the United States of America, Canada
Argentina, Chile and Brazil,

In the following notes to the financial statements when referring to pesos or "Ps”, it means millions of
Mexican pesds. When referring to dollars or "JS4$", it means millions of dollars from the Umted States of
America. When referring to euros or "€" it means millions of eurss.

Note 2 - Significarit events

2016

d4) IntegRex® technology license and signature of a supply agreement with M&G

Duting 2015, Alpek through its subsidiary Grupo Petrotemex, 8. A. de C.'V. (“Grupo Petrotemex”), held
a licensing agreerient for IntegRex® PTA technology and another PTA:PET supply agreement with
M&G Resins USA, LLC (‘M&G"). These agreements will allow M&G to use the IntegRex® PTA
technology in the PTA-PET integrated plant to be constructed in Corpus Christi, Texas in.the United
States of America (the Plant).

On the other hand, Grupo Petrotemex will pay 1758435 to M&G during the construction of the Plant
according toan established calendar and in compliance with certain milestones, by which Grupo
Petrotemex will obtain supply rights.of the Plant for 500 thousand tons of PET (manufactured with 420
thousand of PTA) per year for a period of five years starting from the first day of the month in which the
plant is completed and ready to manufacture and sale their products. Inaccordance to the supply
agreement, Grupo Petrotemex: will supply raw materials for the manufacturing of its PTA-PET volume.
Tt1s estimated that the M&G plant in Cerpus Christi will start operations in'2018,

Page 11
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Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
At December 31, 2016 and 2015

b)

c}

)

At December 31, 2016, Grupo Petrotemex has completed the payments amounting to P5 8,989

(US$435), of which Ps 7,439 (US$360) arerecorded in the intangible assets caption and correspond to
the before mentioned supply rights and will be amortized once the PET supply begins, and Ps'1,550

(US$75) as 4 prepayment of inventory within the. prepayments caption.

Monoethylene Glycol (MEG) manufacturing agreement

On December 15, 2014, the Company through its subsidiary DAX Américas LEC (*DAX”) enter ed into a
Toll Mar_m_facturl_ng Agreement with Hunisman Petrochemical LLC (“Huntsman”) in which will obtaii
the supply rights of Monoethylene Glycol (MEG), which is used in the production of PET polyester, at a

‘preferred toll rate. Huntsman will develop, own and operate the equipment for the production of MEG
“in its Port Neches, Texas plant-and DAK will supply the raw materials for the production. The

installation of equipment and beginning of production ook place during June 2016.

On thé other hiand; DAK paid US$65 to Huntsman during the installation of the equipment according
to an established calendar and in compliarice with certain milestones; thetefore, DAK obtained the
supply rightsup to 28.8 million of pounds of product per year for a 15 years penod commiencing on-the
first day of the month in which the equipment was installed and the production began: At December
31, 2016, payments are recorded under the intangible assets caption and are amortized within the cost
of sales on a straight] line basis during the life of the contract since the month of June 2016, onee the
supply of MEG began.

Cogeneration plant construction project

During the last quarterof 2016, Alpek started the constraction of a steam and- electric cogeneration
prOJect thriough its subsidiary Grupo Pétromex, in‘which it is estimated that an investment will be
madeéin an amount approximating US$aso. T}:us ¢ogeneration plant will generate approximately 350
megawatts of electricity, as-well as all the steam necessary to meet the requirements ofits PTA plant,

located in Altarnira, Tamautipas, Mexico. The cogeneration p]ant will also supply energy to other ALFA

entities outside-of.A]tamira.

‘At December 31, 2016, the Cogeneration plant is in the construction stage, and payments have been

‘made arnountmg 10 Ps 2,449 (US$126) as part of the startup of the construction of the plant. Payments

will be made in accordance with the percentage of completion and it is estimated that its consttuction
will be completed in2018.

Stock purchase contract of Petroquimica SUAPE and CITEPE

On December 28, 2016, Alpek, through its subsidiary Grupoe Petrotemex, 51gned a stock purchase
contract with Petrélec Brasileiro, S. A. ("Pétrobras™ fo acquire its equity in Companhia Petroquimica
de Pernambuco ("Petroqmmlca Suape™) and Companhia Integrada Textil de Pernambuce ("Citepe”).

Petroqumnca Suape and: C1tepe operdtean integrated PTA-PET site in Ipoylca Pernambuco, Brazil,
with a capacity of 700,000 arid 450,000 tons of PTA and PET per year, respectively. Citepe- also
operates a.textured polyester filament plant with a capacity of 90,000 tons per year.

The priceagreed upon for the 100% equity of Petrobras in Petroguimica Suape and Cltepe amounts to
US$385 This amount will be paid in Brazilian reals at the date on which the tratisaction is ¢losed, and.
it is subject to working capital and debt adjustments, among other thifigs.
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Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

At December 31, 2016 and 2015

Additional corporate approvals-are réquired to close this transaction, in addition to the approval of
government authorities with- competent jurisdiction. That contract sets forth a maximum fifteen
month pericd to-complete the transaction as of the date of the contract. At theissue date of these
financial statements, the appravals and conditions are in the process: of being complied with.

2015

&) Agreements between Alpek and BASF for the expanded polystyrene (EPS) and polyurethane (PU)
‘businesses '

During July 2014, Alpek (“Alpek”) and BASF (“BASF”) signed the agreements related to the expanded
polystyréne (EPS) and polynrethane: (PU) businesses. previously held through their joint venture
Polioles, S.A de C.V. (“Polioles™) in Mexico, as well as the EPS business of BASF in North and South.
Americd; except for the Neopor ® (gray EPS) of BASF business.

Alpek acquired all EPS business activities from Polioles, including an EPS plant in Altamira, Mexico.
Likewise, BASF acquired all PU businéss activities frorn Polioles; including certain assets lo¢ated in
Lerma, Mexico’s facility, as well as all marketlng and sales rights for the PU, isocyanate and polyol
systems. Once the transaction was completed, Polioles continued operating as a joint venture between
Alpek and BASF, with a product portfolic comprising of industrial chemicals-and specialties.

Alpékalso acquired the EPS business of BASF in North and South America, inchuding:

. EPS.sales and distribution channels of BASF in North and South America
« The EPS plants of BASF in Guaratinguet4, Brazil and General Lagos, Argentina, and
i« The EPS transformation business of BASF in Chile (Aislapol, S. A.)

The combined capacity of all EPS production units acquired by Alpek is approximately 230,000 tons a
year. This figure includes 165,000 tons a year of Polioles plantin Altamira, Mexico. Approximately,
440 employees work in the businesses subject to.the agreements, 380 of them in the EPS businesses
and 60in the PU businesses. Mostof them continue performing their roles under the new: ownership
framework.

A series of transactions cdn be carried out with the purpose of forming a business combination in the:
most effective manner from the economic point of view: Aceording to IFRS, an agreement to acqun‘e a
‘business through a series of related transactions is a business combination, and the way torecoghize it
should be as if it was a single fransaction. Therefore; the events previously mentioned were considered
as transactions that are related-and were carried outin a conibined way one only agreement with
reference to the fair value according to-each business.

Transactions included in this agreement were ds follows:
PU business sale to BASF

In March 2015, through its subsidiary Polioles, Alpek completed the sale'to BASF MEXICANA of all the
polyurethane (PU) business activities; including assets selected in. the Lerma, Mexico plant, as-well as
all marketing and sales rights of PU, isocyanate and polyol systéms. Erom AlpeK’s standpoint, the PU
business sold was not considered as a business line or segment; therefore, TFRS 5 “Non-current Assets
Held for Sale.and Discontinued Operations” dispesitions Tespect to the'presentation-as.a discontinued
operation, are not applicable. Rather, the transaction was carried out through the sale'of a group of
assets at market terms, and the total consideration received was Ps 407; which it was outstanding at
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Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
At December 31, 2016 and 2015

il

Jr—

JR—

December a1, 2015 and the net book value transferred was P&26, this transaction resulted.in a gain of
Ps 381 and was recorded in the consolidated income statement as other income (expense), net.

Mexico EPS business sale to Styropek

On March 31, 2015, Alpek transferred all its EPS business activities of Policles, including the EPS plant
in Altamira, Mexico to its subsidiary Grupo Styropek, S. A. de C. V. (Styropek). Since BASFholds the
50% of the equity in Polioles, the transaction between stockholders for the EPS business had an effect
of a Ps 150 reduction in the controllinginterest and an increase in the non-controlling interest for thie
same amount, as shown in the consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity.

This transaction had no-accounting effects over the financial staternents of Alpek, since they were
transactions among entities under common control, except for the increase in non-controlling interest.
of Ps150.

EPS business acquisition from BASF

On March 31, 2015, through Styropek, Alpek finalized the acquisition of BASF's EPS business in
Argentina, Brazil, USA, Canada, and Chile. This acquisition included the working capital. A total of 450
employees work in the EPS line of business. The consolidated financial statements include the financial
information of BASF's EPS business starting on March 31, 2015, ‘This acquisition is included in the
Plastics and Chemicals segment. - See Note 31. '

At December 31, 2015; Alpek concluded the puichase price allocation to fair values of acquired assets.

Final purchase price allocation to fair values of acquired assets and assumed liabilities is as follows:.

Current assets ) Ps 622
Propérty, plant and eguipment 424
Current liabilities @ (183).
Other current liabilities (140}
Deferred income tax. {88)
Other liabilities ' {30)
Consideration paid Ps 605

() Current assets consist mainly of accounts receivable and inventories amounting to Ps 333-and
Ps 280, respectively, _

{(2) Current liabilities consist-mainly of suppliers amounting to Ps-101.

Total purchase consideration was paid in cash.

The value of the dccounts receivable acquired approximates to its fair value due to its short-term
maturity. Acquired accounts receivable.are estimated to be recovered in the short term.

N‘o=‘c‘onﬁngent liability has resulted from this acquisition that requires recognition. Theére are neitlier
contingent consideration agreements.

The costs related to the acquisition.amounted to Ps 22 and were recorded in the consolidated statement
of income as “other expenses, net’.
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Revenues contributed by BASF assets included in the consolidated statement of incorne since the
acquisition. date through December 31, 2015 amounted to; Ps 5; 482 and net income to Ps 732, Ifthe:
acquisition had taken place on January 1, 2015, revenues would have increased by Ps 1,600 and net
income by Ps 185, approximately.

Note 3 - Summary of 'sig_'niﬁcant-accounting policies

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes were authorized for issuance on February
17, 2017, by officials with the legal powet to sigh the basic financial statetnents and accotnpanying notes.

The following are the most significant accounting policies followed by the Company, which have been
consistently-applied in the preparation of their financial information in'the years presented, unless
otherwise specified:

a)

b)

Basis for preparation

Theé consolidated financial statements of Alpek have been prepared in-aceordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standatds (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (*IASB”). The IFRSinclude all International Aceounting Standards ("IAS") in force
and-all related interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (“IFRS IC”), including those previously issued by the Standing Interpretations Committee
(“SICH.

The consclidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
derivative financial instruments designated as hedges which are measured at fairvalue and for-the
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through pmﬁt orloss with changes reflected in‘income and
for finianciil assets available for sale.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements according to'TFRS 'reqnires' the use of certain
critical aceounting estimates. Additionally, it requires Management to exercise judgment in the process
of applying the Company s accounting policies. The areas involvinga higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where judgments and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are: d1sclosed in Note 5.

Consclidation
1. Subsidiaries

The subsidiaries are all the entities-over which the Company has the power t0 govern the financial and
operating policies of the entity, The Company controls an entity when it is exposed, or has theright to
variable returns from its interest in the entity and it is capable of affecting the returns through its power
overthe entity. Where the Company's interest in subsidiaries is less than 100%, the share attributed to
outside shareholders is presented as non-controlling interest.

The subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which coritrel is transferred to the Company and
until the date it loses that control.

The Company applies the-acquisition method in accountmg for busitess ¢onibinations. The Company
defines a business combination asa transaction in which obtains control over the business, which'is
defined as a set.of activities and assets which are conducted and managed in order to obtaln benefits in
the form of dividends, less costs.or other economic benefits directly to investors.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
_AtD'e‘cemb_er a1, 2016 and 2015

The consideration transferred for the.acquisition of a subsidiary is the fairvalue of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred with the ex-owners of the acquired business and the equity interests
issued by the Company: The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable acquired assets and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assuined in a business combination are initially measured at their fair values at

the acquisition date. The Company” recogmzes any non-controlling interest in the acquiree based on the
share 6f the non-controlling interest in the et identifiable assets of the acquired entity.

The Company accounts for business combinations of entitieés under commen contrel. iising the.
predecessor method. The predecessor method involves the incorporatioi of the carrying amountsof
the acquired entity, which includes the goodwill recognized at the consolidated level with respeet to the
‘acquiree. Any difference between the consideration transferred and the: carrying amount of the net
dssets acquired at the level of the subsidiary is recognized in stockholders’ equity.

The acquisition-related costs are recognized as expenses when they are incurred.

Goodwill is initially measured as'excess of the sum of the ¢onsideration transferred and the fair value of
the non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired. If the eonsideration transterred is

less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary.acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognized directly in the consolidated statement of income.

Tf thie business combination isachieved in stagés, the value in books:at the acquisition date of the equity
previously held by the Company in the acquired entity is remeasured at its fair value at the acquisition
date. Any loss or gain resulting from sucli rémieasurement is recorded in inicome of the year..

Transactions and intercompany balances, as well as unrealized gains (tosses) on transactions between,
Alpek’s companies are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. In‘orderto
ensure-consistency with the policies adopted by the Company, the amounts reported by the subsidiaries
have been changed where it was deemed necessary.

At Deceriber 31,-2016.and 2015, the Thain companies that comprise the consolidated of the Company
dre as follows:

o Percentage of Functional
Country Ownership & curency
2016 2015
Alpek,S. A.B.de G, V, (Holdmg compaily) Maxican pesc
Grupo Petrotemiex, S. A. de C. V. (Holding company) 100 100 US dollar
DAK Americas, L.L.C. USA 100 100 1S dollar
Dak Resinas Americas Mexico, 8, A. de G, V. _ 100 100 Us dollar
DAK Arnericas Exterior, S. L. (Holding company) Spain 100 100 Eurp
DAK Ameticas Argentma 8. A, Argentina 100 100 Argentine peso
Selenis Canada Inc, @ Canada’ 50 - i8S dollar
Tereftalatos Mexicanos, 8. A. de C.'V. 91 91 Us dollar
Alra Polyester, S, A. de C. V. 93 93 Us:dollar
GCogeneracién de Energi'a Limpia
de Cosoleacague, S. A.de C. V. 100 100 Mexican peso
Indelpra, 5. A. de C. V. {!nde!pro} 51 &1 US-doltar
Policles, 8. A. de C. V. (Polivles) 50 50 US doliar
Grupo Styropek, S. A. de C. V. {Holding company) 100 100 Mexican peso.
Styropek Mexico, 5. A.de C. V. 100 100 US dollar
Styropek, SA. Argentina: 100 100 -Argentine peso
Aislapal, SA. Chile 100 100 Chilean peso
‘Styropek do Brasil, LTD Brazil 100 100 Brazilean real
Unimer, S. A. de C. V. {Holding comipany) 160 100 Mexican peso
Univex, S. A, ' 100 100 Mexican peso
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
At December 31, 2016 and 2015

- @ Companies incorporated in Mexico, except those indicated.
@) Ownership percentage that Alpek has in the holding companies which in turn has in other

companies. Ownership percentages and the voting rights are the same,

[ ) OnJuly 29, 2016, through its subsidiary DAK Americas Exterior, S. L., Alpek acquired a controlling
P interest in Selenis Canada, Inc. (Selenis), the only producet of PET in Canada ‘which operatesa

- plant located in Mentreal, Quebec with capacity to produce 144 ‘thousand tons annually, The

e acquisition of Selenis met the:criteria of a business acquisition, and the amount of the consideration
i paid amounted to US$17.2. The consolidated financial statements include the financial information
- of Selenis beginning on August 1, 2016. This business acquisition is ineluded in the Polyester

t segment.

: At December 31, 2016 and 2015, there are no sighificant restrictions on the invéstment in shares. of the
subsidiaries companiés-above méntionéd.

ii. Absorption {(dilution) of contral in subsidiaries

_ The effect of absorptlon (dilution) of contrel in- subsidiaries, i.e., an increase ordecrease ir thc
- percentage of control, is recorded in stockholders' equity, dlreetly in retainéd earnings,in the period in
which the transactions that cause such effects oceur, The effect of absorption {dilution) of control is
determined by comparing the carrying amount of the investment according to percentage of ownetship
before the event of dilution or absorption.against the carrying amount with the new percentage of
ownershlp after the relevant event. In the case of loss of control, the dilution effect is recognized in
ineome.

P

iii. Saleor djs'.pcsai of subsidiaries

Whien the Company ¢éases to have control any retained interestin the entity is remeasured at fair
I value, and the cliange against the carrying amount is reeogmzed in‘the consolidated income statement.
The fair value is the initial carrying amount far the purposes of accounting for any subsequent retained
i ~ interestin the associate, joint ventute or financial asset. Any amount previously recognized in
' comprehensive income in respect of that entityis accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed-
£ of the related assets and liabilities. This implies that the amounts recognized in the comprehensive
income are reclassified to income for the year.

iv. Associates:

Associates are all entities 6ver which the Company has significant influence but not control. Generally-
! an investor must hold between 20% and 50% of the voting rights in an investee for it to be an associate.
Investmentsin associates are accounted for using the equity method aiid are initially recognized at cost.
i The Company's investment in associates includes goodwillidentified at acquisition, net'of any
' accumulated impairment loss. The Company has an investment of which it owns 50% and it is
| consolidated. See critical judgment in Note 5.2,

i If the equity in an associate is reduced but significant influence is maintained, only a portion of the

amounts recognized in the comprehensive incomeare reclassified to income for the year, where
| -appropriate.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
At December 31, 2016 and 2015

c)

The Company's share ifi profits or losses of associates, post-acquisition, is recognized in the
consolidated income statement and its share in the other comprehensive income of associates is
recogmzed ag other comprehenswe income. The cumulative movements after acquisition are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Company's share of losses in an associate’
equals or exceeds its equity in the associate, including unsecured receivables, the Company does not
recognize further losses unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that theinvestment in_
the associateis impaired. Tfso, the Company calculates the amount of itpairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying amount and recognizes it in "share in
loss of associates” in the consoliddted iricome statement.

Unrealized. gains on transactions between the Company and its associates are eliminated te the extent

of the Company” s share in such gains. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction

provides evidence that the asset transferred is impaired. In order to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Company, the atcounting policies of associates have been modified. When the
Company ceases to have significant influence-over an associate, any difference between the fair value of
any retained interest plus.any proceeds from disposing apart interest in the associate less the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the equity method was discontinued is recognized in the

‘consolidated income statement.

Foreign currencv translation.
i. Functional and preséntation currency

The amounts includéd in the financial statements of each of the Company s subsidiaries and-
associates should be measured using the ¢uiréncy of the primary économic environment in which
the entity operates {"the functional currency™). The- consolidated financial statements are
presented in Mexican pesos, which is the Company’s presentation currency:.

ii, Transactions and balances

‘Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions orvaluation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resuling from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at closing date éxchange ratés of monetary assets and liabilities denommated in foreign
currencies are recognized 4s foreign exchange gains and losses in the consolidated income
statement, except when those transactions arise from cash flow hedges, are recognized in other
comprehensive income, '

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from changes in the fair value of monetary financial
assets and liabilities denominated in'a forelgn currency are recognized-in the conselidated income
staternent, except when those transactions arise from cash flow hedges or hedges of a net

investinentin a foreign operation.

Translation differences on monetary financial assets and liabilities classified as fair 'va]ué'through
profitor loss are recognized in the consolidated income statement as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets c]asszfled as available for sale are
included in other comprehensive income.
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i,

iv.

Translation of subsidiaries with a functicnal currency different from their recording currency.

The ﬁnanciél statements of subsidiaries, having a recording currency different from their
functional currency were translated inte the functional currency in aceordance with the following
procedure:

a. The balances of menetary assets and liabilities denominated in the recording currency were
translated at the closing exchange rates.

b. Thebalances and movements of nonmonetary assets, liabilities and stockholders’ equity were

translated at the historical exchange rates. In the case of the movemenits of non-nonetary
jtems recognized at fair value, which occurred during the period, stated in the recording

currency, these were translated using the historical exchange rates in effect on the date when
the fair value was determined.

¢. The revenue, costs and expenses of the periods, expressedin the recording currency, were
translated at the exchange rate of thedate they werte accrned and recognized in the
consolidated income statement, except when they arcse from non-monetary items, in'which
case the historical exchange rate of the non-monetary items was. tised.

d. The differences in exchange arising in the translation from the recording currency to the
functional currency were recognized as income or expense'in the consolidated income
statement in the period they arose.

Translation of subsidiaries with a functional currency different from their presentation currency.
The results and financial position of all Company entities (none of which is in a hyperinflationary
énvironment) with a functional cutrency different from the presentation currency are translated

into the presentation currency asfollows:

4. Assets and liabilities for each consolidated statement of financial position presented are.
translated at the closing exchange rate at the statement of financial position date;

b. Thestockholders’ equity of each consolidated statement of financial position presented is

transtated at historical exchanges rates.

¢. Incoine and.expenses for each consolidated income statement are transldated at averdge
exchange rate (when the avérage exchange rate is ot a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates of the transaction, to the exchange rate at the date of the-
transaction is used); and

d. Allresulting-exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.
The goodwill and- adjustiments to fair value arising at the date of acquisition of a foreign operation
s0-asto measure them at fair value are recognized as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and

tfranslated at the éxchange tate at the. closing date. Exchange differences arising are recognized in
other compiehensivé income.
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Listed below are the most important exchange rates:

Local currency to Mexican pesos -
Closing exchange

rate at Annual average
December 31 exchange 'raie’_
Country Functiona) currency 2016 2015 2016 2015
USA US dollar 20.66 17.21 18.66° 15,86
Argentina Argentine peso 1.30 1.33 1,26 1.72
Brazil Brazilean real 6.35 4.34 5.44 4.80
Chile Chilean peso 0.03 0.02 0.03 0.02-

* This datais informative, For translation purpeses monthily average éxchange rates are used.

d) Cash and cash equivalents

e)

Cash abd cash equivalents include cash oni hand, bank deposits available for operations and other
short-term investments of high liquidity with original maturities of three months orless, all of which.
ate subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are presented as other current
liabilities. '

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash. eqmvalents whose restrictions.cause them not to comply with the definition of cash and
cash equivalents given above, are presented in a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial

position and are excluded from cash and cash equivalents in the statement cash flows.

Financial instruments

‘Findncial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets:in the following categories: at fairvalue through profit or

loss, loans and receivables, investments held to maturity and available for sale. The ¢lassification
“depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets upon initial recognition. Purchases and sales of financial assets are-

recognized on the settlement date.

Financial assets are written off in full when the right to receive the related cash flows expires oris
transferred and the Cofnpany has also transferred. substantially all risks and rewards of ownership, as
well as control of the financial asset.

i. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit-or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the shoit term.
Derivative financial instrumerits are classified in this category, unless they are designated as hedges.
Finaneial assets at fair value through profit orloss are: initially recognized at fairvalue and transaction

costs are expensed in the consolidated income statement. Gains or losses from changes in fair value of
these assets are presented in the consolidated income statemeént as incurréd.
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At December 31, 2016 and 2015

i, Aecountsreceivable

The accounts receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments. that.

are not quoted in anactive market. They are incladed in current-assets, except for maturities greater

than 12 months: after the consolidated statement of finanecial position date. Thesé are classified as non-
current asseis,

Accounts receivable are initially calenlated at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and

subsequenﬂy at amortized:cost. When circumstances oceur that indicate that the amounts receivable
will not be collected at the amounts originally agreed or'will be collected in a different period, the
receivables are impaired.

iii. Invesimentsheld to maturity

Tf the Company intends and has the demonstrable ability to-hold debt securities to-maturity, they are
classified as investments held to maturity. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within the next 12 months, otherwise they are classified as non-current, Initially
they are recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs, and subsequently they
are-valued at arnortized cost using the effective interest method. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the
Company had no such investments.

iv. Financial assets available for sale

Financial assets available for sale are non-derivative financial instruments that are either designat'ed'in

this category or not.classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets.

unless their maturity is less than 12 months or Management intends to dispose of the investment
within the next 12 months after the consolidated statement of financial position date.

Financial assets available for sale are initially recognized at fair value plus directly attributable

transaction-costs, Subsequently, these assets are carried at fair value {unless they cannot be measured

by their value in an active market and the value is not reliable, in which case they will be recognized at

¢ost less impairmént). '

Gajns or losses arising from-changes in fair value of monetary'and non-monetary instruments are
recognized directly in the consolidated statement of coruprehensive income in the period in which they
‘OceUr.

When instruments classified as available forsale are sold orimpaired, the:accumulated fair value

adjustments recognized in equity are included in the consolidated income statement,

Financial licbilities

Financial liabilities that are not finaneigl derivatives instruments are initially recognized at fair value and
subsequently valued at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Liabilities in this category are-
classified as current liabilities ifis expected to be settled within the next 12 months, otherwise they are
classified as non-current..

Suppliers and other accounis payabie are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired
or received in the ordinary course of business.. Loans are initially recognized at fair value, net of
transacton costs incurred. Debt is subsequently carried at amortized cost; any difference hetween the
fands recewed (net of transaction costs)-and the settlement value is recognized in the consolidated inéomie
statement over the term-of the loan using the efféctive interést method:
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Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

Asgets and liabilities are offset and the net amountis presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforeeable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to'settle on a net basis or to realize the asset:and setile the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial instruments

a.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Company assesses- atthe end of each yéar whether there is objective evidence'of impairment of
gach financial asset or group.of financial assets. An impairment loss is recognized if theré is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that:occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (a "loss event’ "}-and provided that the loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows arising from the financial asset or group of financial assetsthat can be rehably
estimated.

Aspects evaluated by the Company to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment are:

~ Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor.

- Breach of contract, such as default in payments of interest or principal:

- Granting a concession to the issuer or debtor, by the Company, as a result of financial difficulties of
the issuer or debtor and that otherwise would not be considered.

- There is likelihood thit the issuer or debtor will enter bankruptey or.other financial reorganization.

- Disappearance of an active market for that financial asset due to financial difficulties,

~ Verifiable information indicates that there is-a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash

flows related to'a group of finaneial assets after initial recognition, althongh the decrease cannot yet.
be identified with the individual financial asséts of the Company, such as:

i. Adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group of assets.
ii. Nationalorlocal conditions that correlate-with default on the assets in‘the group.

Based on the items listed above, the Company assesses whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Subsequently, for the category accounts receivable, when inipairment exists, the amount
of loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of

estifnated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incutred) discounted at

ilie otiginal effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced by that-amount, which is
récognized in the consolidated income statement under administrative expenses.

If a held-to-maturity investment has avariable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determinéd under the contract. Alternatively, the’
Company coiild determine the impairment of the asset given its fair value determined on the basis ofd
current ebservable market price,

If in the subsequent years, the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the date on which such impairment was recognized (such as an improvement’
in-the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of the loss-impairment is recognized in the consolidated
incoine statement.

Impairment amounts of accounts receivable are:'shown in Note 7.
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b.

g)

Financial assets available-for sale

In the case of debt financial instruments, the Company also uses the above-listed criteria to identify
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. In the case of equity financial instruments, &
‘signifieant reduction. of approximately to '30%of the cost of the investment against its fair value ora

reduction of the fair value against the cost for-a period 1onger than 12 months is considered objective
evidence.of impairment.

Subsequently, in the case of finankcial assets available for sale, an impairmentloss determined by
computing the differerice between the acqmsltmn cost and the current fair value of the asset, less any
impairment loss previously recognized, is reclassified from the other comprehensive inicome to the
consolidated income staternent. Impairment losses recognized in the congolidated income statement
related to equity financial instruments are not reversed through the consclidated income statement.
Impairment losses recognized in the consolidated income statement, related to financial debt

instruments could be reversed in subsequent years, if the fair value of the asset is increased.as a result
ofa subsequentevent.

Derivative finaricis] instruments and hedging activities

All derivative financial instruments are identified and classified as fair value hedges ar cash flow
hedges, or for frading and are recognized in the corsolidated statement of financial position as assets
and/or liabilities at fair vdlue-and similarly measured subsequently at-fair value. The fair value is
determined based on recognmed market prices and its fair value is determined using valuation
techniques accepted in the financial sector.

The hedging derivatives are-classified as a non-current asset or. liability if the remaining maturity of the
hedged item is more than 12 months and asa currentasset or liability if the remaining maturity of the
hedged item is less than 12 menths,

Detivative financial instruments classified as hedges are contracted for risk Hedging purposes and meet
all hedging requirements; their designation at the beginning of the hedging operation is doeumented,
describing the objective, hedge item, risks 10 be hedged and the effectiveness of the hedging
relationship, characteristics; accounting recognition and how the effectiveness isto'be measured.

Fair value hedges

Changes imthe fair value of derivative finascial instruments are recorded in the consclidated income

‘statemient.  The change in fair value of the hedging instruments and the gain or loss on the hedged item

attributable to the hedged risk are recorded in the consolidated incoine statemient. At Decermber 31,
2016 and 2015, the: Company has no derivative financial insttuments classified as fair value hedges.

Cash flow hedges

The changes in the fair value of derivative instruments associated to cash flow hedges are recorded in
stockholders’ equity. The effective portion is temporarily: recorded in comprehengive income, within
stockholders' equity and is reclassified to the consolidated income statement when the hedged item
affects this, The ineffective portion isimmediately recorded in income.
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h)

i)

Net investment hedge

Net investment hedge in a foreign operation is recorded similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gdin orloss

‘of the hiedged instrument related to the effective portion of the hedge is recorded in other

coniprehensive income. The gain of loss of the inefféctive portion is recorded in the consolidated

staterent of income. Accumiulated gains and losses in equity are transferred to the consolidated
‘statemenit of income on the disposal or partial disposal of the foreign operation. At December-31, 2016

and 2015, the Company has no‘derivative financial instruments classified as niet investment hedges.

Discontinuation of hedge accounting

The Company discontinues the hedge accounting when the derivative has expired, has been sold,

cancelled or exercised, or when the hedge ‘does not meet the eriteria for hedge.accounting, or when the
Comipany decides to cancel the hedge designation.

On discontiniting hedge accounting; in the case of fair value hedges, the adjustment to the carrying
amount of a hedged item for which the effectivé interest rate method is used, is amortized to income
over the period to maturity. In the case of cash flow hedges the amourts accumulated in equity'asa

‘part of comprehensive income remair in equity until the time when the effects of the forecasted
transaction affect income. In the event the forecasted transaction is not likely to occur; the income or
loss accunlated in comprehensive income are immediately recognized in the consohdated income

statement.

When the hedge of a forecasted transaction appears satisfactory and subsequently does not meet the
effectiveness test, the cumulative effects in comprehenswe incorne in stockholders’ equity are
transferred proportionally to the consolidated income statement to the extent; the forecasted
transaction: impacts it.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments presented in the financial statements of the Company,
is.a mathematical approximation of their fair value. Ttis computed using proprietary-models of
independent third parties using assumiptions based on past and present markef conditions and tuture
expectations at the respective consolidated statement of financial position date.

Inverniories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the.

average cost method. The cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes ¢ost of product design,
raw materials, direct labor, otherdirect costs and production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes loan'costs. The net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the normal
course of business, less the applicable v ariable selling expenses. Costs of inventories include any gain
or loss transferred from equity corresponding to.raw material purchases that qualify as cash flow
hedges.

Propertv. plant and equipment

Ttems of property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less the accumulated deépreciation and any
accrued impairment losses. The costs include expenses-directly attributable to the asset acquisition,

Subsequent costs are included’in the asset's carrying amount or recognized asa separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits assaciated with the item will flow to

‘the Company and the cost of the item can be reliably measured. The carrying, amount of the replaced

partis derecognized. Repairs and maintenance are recognized in the consolidated income statement
during the year they are iricurred. Major improvements are depremated over the remaining useful life
of the related asset.

Page 24




ronay

Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

At December 31, 2016 and 2015

k)

Depreciation is caleulated using the straight-line method, considering separately each of the asset's
components, except for land, which is not subject te depreciation. The average useful lives of assets
families are as follows:

Buildings and constructions 4010 50 years:
Machinery and equipment 10 1o 40 years
Trangportation equipment 15 years
Furniture-and laborstory equipment and information technology 2to 13 years
Others 3 to 20 years

The spare parts or replacements to.beused after one year and attributable to specific machinery are
classified as property, plant and equipment in other fixed assets.

Borrowing costs directly attributable tothe acquisition related to property, plant and equipment whose.
acquisition or construction requires a substantial period (minimum nine months), are capitalized as
part of the cost of acquiring such qualifying assets, up to the-moment when they are suitable for their
intenided use or sale.. ' '

Assets classified as property, plant and equlpment are subject to irnpairment tests when events or.
circumstances-occur indicating that the carrying amount of the assets may not be fecoverable. An
impairment loss is recogmzed in the consalidated income statément in other expenses, net, for the
amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and its value inuse.

The residual value and useful lives of assets are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period
and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as a change in
accounting estimate.

Gains and losses on disposal of dssets are determined by comparing the sale value with the carrying
amount and are recognized in other expenses, net, in the consolidated income statement.

Leases

The classification of leases as finance or operating depends on the substance of the transaction rather
than the form of the coniract.

Leases in'which a significant portion of the risks and rewards relating to the leased property are.
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of
incentives received by the lessor) are recognized in the consclidated incoime staterient based on the
straight-line method over the lease period.

Leases where the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards.of ownership are classified

as finance leases. Finance leasesare capitalized at the beglnnmg of thelease, at the lower of the fair
value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. If its determination
is practical, in orderto discount the minimum lease payinents to present value; the' interest rate
implicit in the lease is used; othetwise, the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee should be used.

Anyinitial direet costs of the leases are added to the original amount recognized as-dn asséet.
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Each Jease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges to achiéve a constant raté on
the cutstanding balance. The corresponding rental obhga’uons are included in non-curreént debt, net of
finance charges. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the income: for the year durmg
the period of the lease, so-as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest.on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are
depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life-and the Jease term.
odwill and intangible assets

k)

Intangible assets are recognized in the consolidated statement- of financial position when they meet the
following conditions: they are identifiable, provide future-economic benefits and the Company has
control over such benefits.

Intangible assets are classified as follows:

i. Indefinite usefil lifé - These intangible assets are not amortized and are subject to annual
impairment assessments. As of Décember 31, 2016 and.2015, no factors have been identified
limiting the seful life of these intangible assets.

ii. Finite tiseful life - These assets are recognized at costless the accumulated amortization and
impairment losses recognized. They are amortized on a straight, line basis according to'their
estimated useful life, determined based on the expectation of generating future economic benefits,
and are subject to impairment tests when triggering events of impairment are identified.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets with finite useful lives are summarized-as follows:

Development costs 15.5 years.
Supply rights 15 years
No comipete agreements 51010 years
Customer relationships 610 7 years
Software and licenses 310 7 years
Intellectual property rights: 20 to 25 years
Tolling rights 15 yedrs
Othets 20 years
a. -Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the acquisition cost of a subsidiary over the Company's equity in the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired, determined at the date of acqulsmon, and is riot
subject to amortization. Goodwill is shown under goodwill and intangible assets and is recognized at
cost less accumulatéd impairment losses, which are not reverted. Gains or Tosses on the disposal-of an
entity iiclude the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

b. Development costs

Research costs are recognized in income as incurred. Expenditures on development activitiesare
recognized as intangible assets’ when such-costs can be religbly measured, the product or’process is
technically and commercially feasible, potential future economic benefits are obtained and the
Comipany intends also has sufficient resources to complete the development and to use-orsell the-asget.
Theif amortization is recognized in income by the straight- -line method over the estimated useful life of
the dsset. Developmerit expenditures that do not qualify for capitalization are recognized in income as
incurred.
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b

m)

c. Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

‘When an intang_ible asset is acquired inabusiness combiration. it is recognized at fairvalue.at the
acquisition date. Subsequently intangible assets acquired in‘a business combination such as:
trademarks, customer relations, initellectual property rights, no-competition agreements, among
others, are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and aceumulated impairinent losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Asgsets that have an indefinite nseful life, for example goodwill, are not amortizable and are subjéct to
annual impairment tests. Assets that are subjectto amortization are reviewed. for 1mpalrment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may nof be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and:
its valug inise. For the purposeé of assessing impairment, assets are grouped-at the lowest levelsat
which separately identifiablé cash flows exist (cash generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that havé suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

_The.-caption of income taxes in-the consolidated income statement represents the:sum of the current
ineome taxes and the deferred income taxes,

Thie amount of the income tax reflected in the consolidated income statement represents the current.
tax in the year, a5 well as the effects of deferred income tax; which is determined in eacli subsidiary
using the asset and liability method, applying the tax rate established by the législation etiacted or
substantially enacted at the date of the statement of consolidated financial position where the Company

operates and generates taxable income to the total of the temporary differences resulting from

comparing the carrying amounts and tax bases.of assets and liabilities that are-expécted to be applied -
when the deferred asset tax is realized or the deferred liability tax is settled, considering the tax losses

catry forward to be recoverable, The.effect of a.change in current tax rates is recognized in income of

the period in which the rate change is enacted.

Management periodically evaluates posztxons taken in tax returns with fespéct to situations in which: -
the.applicable law is subject to interpretation.. Provisions are recognized when it is appropriate, based

-on the-amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that is probable that future taxable profit

‘will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The deferred i income tax on temporary differences arising from investmentsin subsidiaries and
associates is. recogmzed unless the period of réversal of temporary differences is controlled by the

Company and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse.in the foreaeeable future..

Deferred income tax asséts and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right, and when
taxes are levied by the same tax anthority, either the same taxable entity or entities that may be setfled
or recovered their liabilities and tax assets, on a net basis.
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m) Emplovee benefits

i

ii.

Pension plans
Defined contribution plans:

‘A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay-all employees the benefits relating to
their service in the current and past periods. The contributions are recognized as employee benefit
expense when they are due:

Defined benefit plans:

A defined benefit plan is a plan under which the Company has a legal or constructive obligation for
paying a pension when the employee reach the retirement 4ge, considering factors such as
compensation, years of services and age:

The ligbility récognized in the conselidated statement of financial position in respect of defined
benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the consolidated statement of.
financial position date less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is caleulated
annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The préesent value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using
discount rates according to IAS 19 that are denominated in the currency in-which the benefits will
be paid, and have maturities that approximate the-terms of the pension liability.

The remeasurements of defined benefit obligations and plan assets are recognized directly in
stockholders' equity within other items of the comprehensive incomie in the yearthey oceur.

The Company determities the net finarice expense (income) by applying the discount rate to the

liability (asset) for net defined benefits.

Past-service:costs are récognized .imm'ediately_in the consolidated income-statement.
Other post-employment benefits.

The Company provides medical benefits after termination of employment to its retired employees
of certain subsidiaries. The right to access these benefits usually depends on the employee’s.
having worked until retirement age and completing a minimum of years of service. The-éxpected
costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment using the same criteria as those
deseribed for defined benefit pension plans,

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is-terminated by the Company before the
normal retirement date or when an employee accepts voluntary termination of employment in,
exchange forthese benefits. The. Company recognizes termination benefits in the first of the
following dates: {a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of these benefits, and (b)
when the Company recognizes the costs from restructuring within the seope of the IAS g7and it
involves the payment of termination benefits. If there is an offer that promotes the termination of
the employment relationship voluntarily by employees, termination benefits are valued based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Any benefits to be paid more than 12
months after the consolidated statement of financial position date are discaunted to their present
value.
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0)

)

iv. Short-térm benefits

The Company provides benefits to employees in the short term, which may include wages salaries,
annual compensatlon 4nd bonuses payable within 12 months. The Company recognizes an

undiscounted provision when it is-contractually obligated or when past practice has created an
gbligation.

v. Employees’ profit sharing and bonuses

The Company recognizes a Hability and an expense for bonuses and employees’ profit sharing when
it has a legal or constructive cbligation to pay these benefits and determings the amount to be
recognized based on the profit for the year after certain adjustments.

Provigions

Provisions represent a present, legal or assumed cbligation as a result of past events, where an outflow
of resources.to meet the obligation is likely and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are
not recognized for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenses that ate ekpected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects eurrent market value corsiderations, the time value of-
money-and the specific risk of the obligation. The increase in the provision over the course of time is
recognized as interést expense.

When-there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an cutflow will be reqiiiréd in
settlement is determined by consuilermg the class of obligations as a whale. A provision is recognized
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one itern included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions for legal claims are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (fegal or-
assumed) as'a result of past events, it is likely that an ontilow of economic resources will be required.to
settlé the obligation and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

A restructuring provision is recorded when the Comparny has developed a formal detailed plati for the
restructure, and a valid expectation for the réstructure has been created between the people affected,
possibly for having started the plan implementation or for having announced its main characteristics to
them.

Share-based pavments

The Comipany's compensation plans are referred in 50% to the value of the:shares of Alfa and the other-
50% to the value of the shares of Alpek, in favor of certain senior executives of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The conditions for granting such compensation to the eligible executives include among
other things, compliance with certain metrics such as the level of profit achieved, the permanence in
the Company up to 5 years, etc. The Board of Directors of Alfa has appointed a. technlcal committee for
the administration of the plan, which reviews the estimated cash settlement of this compensation at the
end of the year. Payment of the plan is always subject to'the sole discretion of ALFA’s top

Management. Adjustmenis to such estimateé are charged or credited to the consolidated income

statement.
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s)

1)

w

The fair value of the amount payable-to employees in respect of share-based payments which are
settled in cash is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase in liabilities; over the period
of service required. The liability is included under other liabilities and is adjusted at each reporting
date'and the settiement date. Any change in the fair value of the liability is recognized as compensation.
expense in the consolidated income statement.

‘Treasury shares_

The Shareholders’ Meeting periodically authorizes a maximum amount for the acquisition of the
Company's own shares. Upon the occurrence of a repurchase of its own shares they become treasury
shares and the amount is charged to stockholders’ equity at purchase price:.a portion to capital stock at
its modified historical value, and the balance to retained earnings. These amiounts are stated af their
historical value.

Capital stock

The Company's ordinary shares are classified as capital. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issuance of new shares are included in equity as a deduction from'the consideration received, net of
taxes.

Comprehersive income

Comprehensive income is composed of net income plus other items of comprehensive income, net of
taxes, which comprise the:effects of the translation: of foreign subsidiaries, the effécts of derivative.
financial instruments for cash flow hedging, remeasurements of obligations for employee. benefits, the.
effects of changes in the fair value of financial instruments available for sale; the equity in other items
of comprehernisive income of associates, and other items specifically required to be reflected in
stockholders' equity and which do not constitute capital contributions, reductions or distributions.

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented consistently with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Exetutive Officer who is the highest authority in 6perational deasmn-makmg, resource allocation and
assessmeit of operating segment performance.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods-and

services in the normal course of operations. Revenue is shown net of value added tax; customer-

returns, rebates and similar discounts and after eliminafing intercompany revenue.

Revenue from the sale of goods and produets aré recognized when all and each of the following
conditions are met:

- The risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.
The amount of revenue can be reliably measured.
It is likely that futire economic benefits will flow to the Company.
- The Company retains no involvenient as§ociated with ownership nor effective control
of the sold goods.
The costs incurred or to be incusred in respect of the transaction can be measured reasonably.
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Revenues from services are recognized as follows:

The amount of révenue can be reliably measured.

Tt is likely that future economic benefits will flow to the Company.

The stage of complétion of the service, on the date of the consolidated statement of financial position
can be measured reliably,

The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reasonably.

1

1

The revenue recognition criteria:depend on the contractual conditions with the Company's costumers.
In some cases, depending on the agreements with each costumer, the risks and benefits associated to
the property are transferred when the goods are taken by the costumers in the Company's plant. In
other cases, the risks and benefits associated to the property are transférred when the'goods are-
delivered in'the plant of the costumners. '

Dividend income from investments is recognized once the rights of shareho]ders to receive this

payment have been established (when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the-entity
and the revenue can be reliably valued)..

Interest income is-recognized when it is likely that the economie benefits will flow to the entity and the
amount of revenue can be reliably valued by applying the effective interest rate.

v) Eargings per share

Earnings (losses) per share.are calculated by dividing the profit (loss) attributable to the shareholders
of the parent by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding daring the year. At
‘December 31, 2016 and 2015, there are no dilutive effects from financial instruments potentially
convertible into sha:e_s

The following standards were adopted by the Company for the first time beginning On.Jlanualy 1, 2016,
which did net have a material impact on the Company:

« Annual improvemeénts to the IFRS - cycle 2012-2014.
+ Disclogure initiative - Changes to TAS 1.

The adoption of these changes had no impact in the current period or-any previous periods and itds not
likely to affect future periods.

x) New accounting pronoiincements

A number of new standards, modifications, and interpretations of standards have been published;
which aré not effective for reporting periods at Deceriber 31, 2016, and they have not been adopted
early by the Company: The évaluation of the Company on the effects of these new staridards and
interpretations are discussed below:

IFRS 9.~ "Finaneial instruments ", addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of
financidl assets and Habilities and introduces new rules for hedge accounting. In July 2014, the IASB.
made additional changes to the classification and measurement riiles and also introduced a new.
impairment modél. These last changes now comprise the entire new financial instruments standard.
Following the approved changes, the Compaiy no longer expécts any itmpact from the new rules of
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classification, measurement-and decrease of its financial assets or lisbilities. There will be no impact on

the Company’s accounting from financial liabilities, since the new requirements only affect financial

liabilities at fair value throngh income-and the Company has no such liabilities. The new hedge rules

pair ip the Company's hedge accounting and risk management. As a general rule, the hedge accounting;
will be much easierto apply sinice the staridard introduces an approach based en prineiples. The new
standard introduces extensive disclosure requirements and changes in presentation, which will
continié fo be assessed by the Company. The riew impairment modei is a model of expected eredit
losses; therefore, it would result in advance recognition of credit Josses.

‘The Company continues assessing how its hedge agreements and inipairment provisions are affected

by the new rules. The standard is effective for the periods beginning on or-after January 1, 2018, Early
adoption is allowed.

IFRS 15 - "Revenue from contracis with customers”, is a new standard issued by the JASB for revenue
recognition. This standard replaces IAS 18 “Revenues”, IAS 11 “Construction contracts”, .as well as the
interpretations to the aforementioned standards. The new standard is based on the fact that revenue
should be recorded when the control over the good or different sexvice is transferred to the customer,
so that this contrel notion replaces the existing notion of risks'and benefits.

The standard allows for a complete retrospective approach and a miodified retraspective approach for
its adoption. The Company has assessed the two approaches and it considers that the modified
retrospective approach will be-used for adoption. Under this approach the entities will recogrize
adjustments from the effect of initial application (January 1, 2018) in retained earnings in the financial
statements at December 2018 without restating comparative periods, by applying the new rules to
contracts efféetive as of January 1, 2018 or those that even when held in prior years continue to be
effective at the date of initial application.

For disclosure purposes in the financial staternents at 2018, the-amounts of affected items must be
disclosed, considering the application of the-current revenue standard, as.well as an explanation of the
reason for the significant changes made.

During 2016, Management performed 4 diagnosis to identify areas that require'a major analysis to

determine the possible impact of the new standard IFRS 15. The matters.considered most relevant and

require a major analysis are: identily if there are additional obligations to be met in contracts with _
customers, the transfer of coutrol:over products and at which it should be recognized as revenue, based
on the new guidelines on this starndard.

At December 31, 2016, the Comipany is in process. of assessing the impacts of this new standard in its
financial statements. The standard is effective for periods beginning on or aftér January-1, 2018. Early
adoptionis permitted.

IFRS 16 - “Leases”. The IASB issuied in January 2016 a new standard for lease accounting,. This _
standard will replace current standard JAS 17, which classifies léases into financial and operating, IAS.
17 identifies leases as financial in nature when the risks and benefits of an asset are transferred, and
identifies the rest as operating Jeases. IFRS 16 eliminates the classification between financial and
operating leases and requires the recognition of a liability showing future payments and assets for
“right of use” in most leases. The IASB has included some exceptions in short-term leases and in low-
value assets. The aforementioned amendments are applicable to the lease accounting of the lessee;
while thelessor maintains similar conditions to those currently available. The most significant effect of
the new requiremerits is shown in an increase in leasing assets and liabilities, also affecting the
statement of income in depreciation expenses and financing of recorded assets and liabilities,

tespectively, and decreasing expenses relative to leases préviously recognized as operating leases.
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Atthe issue date of these financial statéments, the Company has non-cancelable operating lease
agreements amounting to Ps 2,682. However, it tas still not been determined to'what degree these
commitments will have as a result of recognizing an asset and a liability for future payments, and how
this affects net income and classification of the Company's cash flows,

The standard is effective for periods that begin on or after January 1, 2019. The Company does not
“have theintent to adopt the standard early at this stage. '

Ther_f_: are no additional standards, amendments or interpretations issued but not yet effective that
could have a significant effect on the Company.

Note 4 - Risks management
4.1 Financial rigk factors
The Company’s activities expose it to various financial risks: market risk (mcludmg foreign exchange risk,

price risk, interest rate risk on cash flows and interest rate risk on fair value); credit visk and liguidity risk.
The. Company s risk management plan considers-the unpredictability of the financial markets and seeks to

‘minimize the potential negative effects on the financial performance of the Company. The Company 1ses.

derivative financial instruments to hidge sorme risk exposures.

‘The objective is to protect the financial health of the business taking into account the volatility associated
with exchange rates and interest rates. Addmonaliy, due to the nature of the industries in which it
participates, the Company. has entered into-derivative hedges of input prices.

ALFA the ultimate controlling company of Alpek has a Risk Management Committee, constituted by the
Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chigf Financial Officer of the holding Company and a finanéial

‘executive from the holding Company who acts as technical secretary. The Committee oversees derivative

transactions proposed by the subsidiaries of ALFA in which the maximum possible loss exceeds (US$1).
This:Committee supports both the Executive Director and the Chairman.of the Board of Directors of ALFA.

* All new derivative transactions that the Company proposes to make, and the renewal of existing

derivatives, require to be approved by both the Company and the holding Company in accordance with the
following schedule of authorizations:

Possible Maximum Loss US$

: Cumuliative
Individual annual
transacticns transactions
Company's Chief Exécutive Officer 1 5
Risk Management Committee of ALFA 30 100
Finance Committee 100 'SD'O__
Beard of Directors of ALFA =100 >300

The proposed transactions must meet certain eriteria, including that the hedges-are lower than exposurés,
arid that they are the result of-a fundamental analysis and propeﬂy documented. Sensitivity analyses and
other risk analyses should be performed before the operation is carried out.
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a) Market risk
i. Exchange rate risk

The Company operates mternatmnally and is exposed to the exchange rate risk, mainly in relation to
Mexican pesos and with currencies different to the fanctional currency in which its subsidiaries operate:
The Company is exposed to foreign ex¢hange 1isk arising from future commercial transactions ih assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies and investments abroad.

The respective exchange rates of the Mexican heso-and the U.S. dollar are very. important factots for the.
Company due to the effect they have on their results. Moreover, Alpek has no influence whatsoever, over
their movements. On the other hand, Alpek estimates that most of its révenes ate denominated in foreign
currancy, either because they come from prodicts that are exported from Mexico, or because they come
from products that are manufactured and sold abroad, or because even if sold in Mexico the price of such
products are set based on international prices in foreign currencies such as the U.S. dollar.

For this reason, in the past, when the Mexican peso has-appreciated in real terms against other currencies
such as the U. 8. dollar; the Company's profit margins have been reduced. -On the other hand, when the
Mexican peso has lost value, the Company's profit margins have been increased. However, glthough this
factor correlation has appeared on several occasions in the recent past, there is no assurance that it will be-

repeated if the exchange rates betweenthe Mexican peso and other currencies fluctuate again.

The Company participates in operations with derivative financial instruments on exchange rates for the.
purpose of controlling the total comprehenswe cost of its financing and the volatility associated with
exchange rates. Additionally, it is important to note the high "dollarization" of the Company's revenues,
since a large proportion of its sales:are made abroad, providing a natural hedgé against its obligations in
dollars, while at the same time its income level is affected in the event exchange rate appreciation. Based on
thé-Ovérall exchange rate exposure at December 31, 2016 and 2015, a hypothetical variation of 5% in the
exchange raté MXN/USD, holding all othes variables constant, would result in an effect on the consolidated

‘income statemesit by Ps-69 and Ps 56, respectively.. See Note 16,

ii. Pricerisk

In carrying out its activities, the Company-depends on the supply of raw materials provided by its suppliers,
both in Mexico and abroad, among: which are intermediate petrochemicals, principally.

In the most recent years, the price.of some inputs has shown volatility, especially those arising from oil and
natural gas.

Iri order to fix the selling pricés of certdin of its products, the Company has entered int¢ agreements with
certam customers. The practice in the industry in North-America has been to set prices on a cost plus
margin basis, by reference to & price formula for transferring the variations in the costs of the main raw
materials and energy to achieve a predictable margin, At the same time, the:Company has entered into
transactions involving derivatives on natural gas, gasoline, ethylene, ethane, paraxylene and brent crude
seeking to reduce the volatility of prices of these inputs, the Company does not suffer fluctuations upward
or downward.

Additionally, it has engered into derivative finangial instruments transactions to hedge purchases of certain
raw materials, since thesé inputs have-a direct ar indirect relationship with the prices of its products.
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The derivativefinancial operations have been privately contracted with varions financial institutions,
whose financial strength was hlghly rated at the time by rating agencies. The documentation used to
formalize the contract operations is that based generally on the "Master Agreement", gencrated by-the
“International Swaps:& Derivatives Association” {("ISDA"), which is accompanied by various accessory

-documents known in generic terms as "Schedule®, "Credit Support Annex" and "Confirmation".

Regarding natural. gas Pemex is the only supplier in Mexico. The selling price of natural gas at first hand is
determined by the price of that product on the "spot" market in South Texas, USA, which has experienced
volatility: For its part, the CFE is a decentralized public company in charge of producing and distributing
electricity in Mexico. Electricity rates have also been influenced by the volatility of natural gas, since most.
power plants are gas-based.

The Company entered info various derivative agreements with various counterparties to protect it against

increases in prices of natural gas and other raw materials. In the case of natural gas derivatives, hedging

strategies for products were designed to mitigate the impact of potentlal Increases in prices. The purpose is

_ to protect the price from volatility by taking posmons that provide stable cash flow expectations, and thus

avoid price uncertainty. The reference market price for natural gas is the “Henry Hub New York Mercantile

‘Exchange (NYMEX)". The average price per MMBTU for 2016 and 2015 was 2.31 and 2.60 US dollars,
‘respéctively.

At December 31, 2016, the Company had hedges of natural gas, ethylene, ethane and paraxylene prices for
a portion expected of consumption needs in Mexico and the United States. Based on the general 1nput
exposure at December 31, 2016 and 2015, a hypothetical increase (decredse) of 10%.in market prices
applied to fair value and keeping all other variables constant, such as exchange rates, the increase
(decrease) would result in an immaterial effect on the consalidated-income statement for 2016 and 2015.

jii. Interestrate risk and cash flow

The interest rate risk.of the Company arises from long-term loans entered into with banking. institations.

Loans at.variable rates éxpose the Company to interest rate risk on ¢ash flows that are partially offset by

-cash held at variable rates. Loans at fixed rates expose the Company to interest raté risk at fair value;

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, if interest rates on variable rate loans were increased/decreased by 10%,
interest expense, in the consclidated income statement, would increase/decrease by Ps.7 and Ps 7,
respectively.

b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis; except for the credit risk related to accounts receivable balances.
Each subsidiary is responsible for managing and analyzing credit Tisk for eachi of its new customers before.
setting the terms and eonditions of paymetit. Credit #isk is generated from cash and cash equivalents;
derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks and financial institutions as well as credit
exposure to customers, including receivables and committed transactions. Tf wholesale customers are
rated independently, these are the ratings used. If there isno independent rating, the Company s risk
control group evaluates the creditworthiness of the customer, taking into-account their financial position,
past experience and otherfactors,

Individual risk limits are determined based on iriternal and éxternal ratifigs in accordance with limits'set by
the Board. The credit risk analysis is petformed régularly.
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During 2016 and 2015, credit limits were not exceeded and Management does not expect losses in éxcess of
the impairment recognized in the corresponding periods.

The impairment provision for doubtful accounts represents estimated losses resuiting fromthe inability of
customers to make required payments. In determining the allowance for doubtful accounts, significant
estimates have to be made. The Company performs ongoing eredit evaluations of its customers-and adjusts
credit limits based upon payment history and the customer’s current. creditworthiness, as determined by a
review of their current creditinformation. In addition, the Company-considers a number.of factors to
determiirie the size and appropriate timing for the recognition of allowances, including historical collection
expérience, customer base, current economic trends.and the ageing of the accounts: receivable portfolio.

¢) Liguidity risk

Tn the past, the Company has generated and expects to continue generating positive opération cash ﬂows
Operation cash flows mainly represent the inflow of net income (adjusted for depreciation and other items
not related to cash) and the outflow of working capital increases necessary to-grow the business. Cash
flows used in investment activities, represent capital expenditures (Capex) required forthe growth, as well
‘as business acquisitions. Finaneing activities cash flows are related mainly with the indebtedness changes

to grow the business or indebtedness paid with cash of’ operations or refinancing operations, as;well as
dividends paid.

The main cash flow needs of the Company are for working capital, Capex;, maintenance; business
combinations and payment of debt. The:Company's abilities to finance cash flow needs depénd on the
continuous ability to generate cash frem operations, general capacity and terins of finance agreenients, as
well as access to capital markets. The Company believes.that the furture cash flows of operations together
‘with the access to funds available under such finance agreements and capital markets, will provide it with
adequate resources to finance predictable operating requirements, Capex, acquisitions and new busingss
development activities.

The following tables:analyze the derivative and non-derivative finaneial liabilities, grouped according to
their maturity, from the consolidated statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date.
Derivative financial liabilities areincluded inthe analysis to know the timing of the Compainy's cash flows
for these liabilities.

"The detail of maturities of existing finaneial liabilities at December 31,.2016 and 2015, is as follows

l.éssthan  Betweén'! and Between?2 More than
lvyear 2 years and & years 5 years
At December 31, 20186 _
‘Suppliers and other accounts payable Ps 15492 Ps. -  Ps - Ps -
Derivative financial instruments 73 187 459 -
Current and non-current debt _
(excluding issuance expenses) 3820 2,48 3,427 20,882
At December 31,2015 _
Suppliers ahd other accounts payable Ps 11,693 Ps - Ps - Ps -
Derivative finangial instruments 848 204 BO7 -
Current-and nen-current debt _
(excluding issuance expenses) 1,550 1,235 4191 18,185

@ Amountsincluded are undiscounted contractual cash flows; therefore, they differ from the amounts
included in the consolidated financial statements and in Note 19..
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The Company expects to meet its obligations with cash flows generated by opérations. Additionally, the
Company has aceess to credit lines with various banks to meet possible requirements.

‘At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has unused committed credit lines fora total of US$383 and
US$346 million, respectively.

4.2 Capital management
The Company's objectives when managing equity are to: safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a
goihig concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to educe the cost of equity.

To maintain of modify the equity structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
sharéholders, return equity to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company monitors equity based on the.degree of leverage. Thisratiois calculated by dividing total -
liabilities by total stockholders™ equity.

The financial ratis of total liabilities/total stockholders” equity was 1.19 and 1.17 at December 31, 2016 and.
2015, respectively. '

4.3 Fairvalue estimation.

The following is an analysis of financial instruments méasured by the fair value valuation method. The
three different levels used are presented below:

- Level 1: Quoted prices for identical instruments in.active markets.

- Level 2: Other valuations including quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets that are
directly or indirécily observable,

- Level 3: Valuations made through techhiques wherein one or.more of their significant data inputs are
non-observable.

The fo'ﬂowing'_table presents the Company's assets and liabilities that are. measured at fair value at
December 31, 2016:

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Derivative with hedge accounting treatment Ps - Ps 56 Ps - Ps 56
Financial assets available for sale - - 172 172
Total Ps - Ps 56 Ps__ 172 Ps.___ 228
Liabilities

Financial liabilities at-fairvalue

through prefitor loss

-Negotiable derivative Ps  Ps 12 Ps Ps i2
Employees' benefits based on:shares 31 - - 31
Derivative with hedge accounting treatment - 705 - 705
Total Ps__ 31 Ps.___717 Ps - Ps 748
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The fellowing table presents-the Company's assets.and liabilitiés that are measured at fair value at
December 31, 2015:

Assets ' Level 1 Level 2 Leve!3 Total
Financial assets at fair value

through profitor loss

-Negotiable derivative Ps - Ps 203  Ps - Ps 203
Defivative with hedge accounting treatment - - - -
Financial assets available for sale - . 144 144
Total Ps - Ps.__ 203 Ps__ 144 Ps 347
Liahilities

Financial liabilities at fair value
‘through profit or loss.

-Negotiable derivative Ps - Ps 17 Ps - Ps 17
Employees' benefits based on shares 55 - : 58
Derivative with hedge accounting treatment - 1.542 = 1,542
Total Ps 55 Ps _ 1583 Ps - Ps. 1614

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2, or between levels 2 and 3-in the reported periods.
Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market pnces at the.
consolidated statement of financial position date. A market is considered active if quoted pnces are'clearly
and regularly available from a stock exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regular market transactions at arm-length conditionis. The.
trading price used for financial assets held by Alpekis the current bid price.

Level 2

The fairvalue of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using

‘valuation technigues. These valuation techmques maximize the use of chservable market data when

available and rely as litfle-as possible on estimates specificto the Company If all significant inputs required
to measure an instrument at fair value are observable, the instrument is classified at Eevel 2.

Level 3

If one or more.of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is classified
at Level a

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

- Market quotations or offers from retailers for similar instruments,

- The fair value of swaps is caleulated as the present value of foture cash flows estimated in observable
‘Feturn cuives:

- The fair value of forward contracts is determined using exchange rates at the consolidated staterent of
financial position date, when the resulting value is discounted at present value:

< Other. techmques such as the analysis.of discounted cash flows, used to determme the fair value of the
remaining financial instruments.
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Financial assets included within this level are only finanéial assets available for sale, which correspond to
investment in company’s shares that are iot quoted in the active market and therefore; the fair value may
not be reliably determined.

Note 5 - Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Estimiates and judgments are_rcon'_tjnually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstanees.

5.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptibns

The Conipany makes estimates based on assumptions concerning the futtre. The resulting accounting
estimates will be, by definition, seldom equal 1o the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are the following;

a) Property, plant; 'e'quipment and finite life intangibles

The Cémpany estimates. the useful lives of its property, plant and equipment and finite Tife intangibles
in order to determine thie depreciation and amortization expense, respectively, to be récorded during
the reporting period. The useful life of these assets is caleulated when the asset is acquired and is based
on the past experience with similar assets, considering advance technological changes'or changes of
other kind. If technological changes would occur faster thin estimated, or differently from- antmpated
the useful lives assigned to these asséts may need to be reduced. This would result in the recognition in
a greater depreciation and amertization. expense in future periods. Alternatwe]y, these types of
technological changes may result in recognizing a charge for impairment to show the reduction in the
value of assets. The Company reviews assets annually to know if they show signs of impairment, or
when certain events or-circumstances mdlcate that the carrying amount cannot be recovered during the
remaining life of the assets, in case-thete:are signs of impairment, the Company carries out-a study to
determine thevalue in u1se of assets. At December 21, 2016 and 2015, there were no indicators of
impairment. '

b} Income taxes

The Company is subject to income taxes in-numerous jurisdictions and critical judgment is required to
detérmine the global income tax provisions. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination could beuncértain. The Company recognizes liabilities.in anticipation
of a tax audit based on éstimates-of whether additional taxes will be paid. When the final tax outcome
of thése matters is different from'the amounts that were initially recorded, siich differences will impaect
the current and deferred income taxassets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is
nade. If income before taxes increases/decteases by 5%, incomie tax will be increased/decreased by
Ps118.

¢) The fair value of derivative financial instruments

The fair valie of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using
fair value hierarchies. The Company uses its judgment to select a variety of methods and make
-assumptions that are based mainly on markst conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. If
the fair value estimation varies by 5%, the effect oii iticome would be modified by Ps 1 and the equity by
Psge.
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d) . Pension benefiis

The present value of pensjon obligations depends on a number of factors determined on an actuarial
Dasts using different assumptions. Assumptions used in the determination of the net cost (income) for
pensmns include the discount rate. Any change in the assumptions will impact the carrying amounts of
pension cbligations.

The Company determines the adequate'discount rate at year end. This interest rate should be used to
determine the present value of future cash outflows expected required to settle pension obligations. n
the determination of the appropriate discount rate, the Company considers the discount interest rate in

conformity with 1AS 19 (Revised) "Employee benefits" denominated in the currency used to pay
benefits with terms at maturity that approximate the obligations terins of related pension cbligations.
Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based, in part, on the current market conditions.
See analysis of sensibility in Note 20.

5.2 Critical judgments in applying the entity's accounting policies
a) Basis for-consclidation

The financial statements include the assets, liabilities and esults of a1l entities in which the Company
has a controlling interest. The balances and significant intercompany iransactions have beén
eliminated in consolidation. To determine eontrol, the. Company corisiders whether it has the power to
govern the financial and operational strategy of the. respectwe entity and notjust the power of the
capital held by the Company. As a result of this analysis, the Company has exercised critical judgment
to decide-whether to consolidate the financial statements of Polioles and Indelpto, where the
determination of conirel is not clear: Based on the prmmpal substantive right of Alpek in accordance
with the by-laws of Polioles to appoint the General Director, who has contrsl over the relevant decision
making and based on the by-laws of Indelpro and supported in the General Law of Mercantile
Organizations, which allow Alpek to control the decisions over relevant activities by a simple majority
through an ordinary shareholders’ meeting, where it holds 51% of Indelpro. Management has
coricluded that there are circamstances and factors described in the bylaws of Policles and applicable
standards that allow the Company to conduct the daily operations of Policles and Indelpro, therefore,
demonstrate contral. The Company will continue to évaluate these circumstances at the date of each
consolidated statement of financial position to determine if this critical judgment is still valid. If the
Company determines that it has no eontrol over Polioles and Indelpro, they will need to be
deconsolidated and be accounted for using the equity method.

Note 6 - Cash and cash equivalents
The ¢ash and cash equivalents are comprised as follows:

At December31,

2016 2015
Cash and bank accounts Ps 1,888 Ps 3,226
Shori-term bank deposits 1.049 3,424
Cash and cash equivalents Ps 2:935 Ps 6,650
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Restricted cash and cash equivalents

At Décember 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has resiricted cash of approximately Ps.2 and Ps 3,
respectively. The balances are required 1o be held in escrow as deposits related to workers compensation
reserves: The restricted cash balance is classified &5 current assgets in the consolidated statement of
financial position based on the maturity date of the restriction.

Note 7 -Trade and other receivables, net

Trade and other accounts receivable are-comprised as follows:

At December 31,

2018 2015

Trade recelvables Ps 11,377 Ps 8,351
Provision for impairment of trade receivables {(186) (165)
Trade receivables, net 11,191 8,196
Accourtts receivable fram related parties (Note 8) 1,101 2,954
Recoverable taxes 3,384 1,978
Interest receivable’ 2 -
Other debtors. 240 256
-Gurrent porion Ps 15818 Ps 13,384

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, trade receivables and other accounts receivable include-past-due balances

not impaired of Ps 2,082 and Ps 1,433, respectively,

As:of Decetnber 31 2016 and 2015, the balance of other debtors is cornprised primarily by travel expenses,
customs expenses, among othérs.

The aging analysis of the balances due from customers and other receivables not impaired is as follows:

At December 31,

2016 2015
1 to 30 days Ps 1,101 Ps 587
3010 90 days 239 183
90 to 180 days 161 57
More than 180 days _ 581 606

Ps___ 2082 Pg 1,433

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, trade and otheraccounts receivable of Ps 186 and Ps 155, respectively were

--totélly_impaire_d. Trade and other accounts regeivable impaired cdr-rgspond mainly to companies going
‘through difficult economic situations. Part of the impaired-accounts is expected to be recovered.
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Movements.in the provision for impairsent of trade receivables are analyzed as follows:

Initlal balance {January 1)

Provision for impairment in trade receivables
Trade réceivables writtén-off during the year
Cancellation of unused provision for impatiment
Exchange rate fluctuations

Final balance (December 31}

2016
155)
(60)
15
24

I [0)]
(Ps____186)

2015
(Ps  398)
(12)
261
(11)

(Ps___155)

The maximum risk in accounts receivableis the carrving amount at December g1, 2016 and 2015. Increases
in the provision for impairment of tradeand other feceivables are recognized in the ¢onsolidated income

statement under the caption selling expenses.

Note 8 - Related-parti'cs transactions

Transactions with related parties during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, which were
celebrated as if the conditions carried out in terms.similar to those of arm’s - length transactions with

independent third parties were as f_ollows

Revenue
Revenue from finished goods sales:.

Affiliates o

Shareholders with significant infiuence over subsidiaries
Revenue from services:

Affiliates

Bhareholders with significant influence over subsidiaries
Revenue from financial interest:

Holding company

Affiliates _ __

Shareholders with significant influence over subsidiaries
Other revenue:

Affiliates _ _ _ L

Shareholders with significant influence over subsidiaries (Note-2¢)
-Costs / expenses
Purchase of finished goods and raw materials:

Affiliates: L _

Shareholders. with significant influence over subsidiaries-
Administrative services expenses;

Affiliates.
Stareholdars with significant influsnce-over subsidiaries

Interest expenses:
Associates

Other expenses;
Affiliate _
Shareholders with significant influence over subsidiaries-(Note 2e}
Dividends declared:

Holding company
Other sharsholders

2018

Psg -
1,343.

350
180

28
10

(Ps. 3)
(915)

{346)
{(15)

(1)
(69)

(1,608)
(351)

2015

Ps 75.

1,225

311
12

(Ps 21)

(1,317)

(202),
(58)

(2s8)

{1.209)
- (264)

Page 42




Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
At December 31, 2016 and 2015

Dividends from subsidiaries to the non = controlling interest:

Shareholders with significant influence over subsidiaries
Other shareholders

Effect of business transference under common condrol

(1,967)
(82)

(435}

(012)
(66)

) Duringthe month of November:2016, Alpek received from ALFA (Holding Company) the transfer of
shares representative of 100% of the capital stock of Petrocel S: A. (company that has the operating rights
of a maritime ferminal in Altamira, Tamaulipas), thus since that date bécameé a subsidiary of Alpek. The
cost of this tranisactions amounted to $1, and représented the acquisition of negative net assets amounting

to Ps a434.

For the year-ended December 31,2016; wages and benefits received by top officials of the Company were

Ps 336 (Ps 266 in 2015), comprising of base salary and law benefits and supplemented hy-a variable

of its-shares. .

compensation program that is basically based on the performance of the Company and by the market value

Thie- Company and its subsidiaties report that they had no mgmﬁcant transactions with related parties or

conflicts of interest to dis¢lose at December 31, 2016 and- 2015

Ai December 31, the balances with related parties are as follows:

Nature
of the transaction
Short term account receivables: ' '
.Haolding company
Alfa, 5.A B.de C. V.® Flnancmg arid Interests
Alfa, 5. A. B.de C. V. Administrativé services.
Affiliates
Inncvacién y Desarrofio de Energia;
Alfa Sustentable, S.A. da . V. Administrative servicas
Newpsk, LLC Admimistratlve services
Nemak, 5. A. B. de'C. V, Administrative services
Terza, S A.de C: V. ‘Sale of goods’
Petraceal, S, .A, Operative and administratlve servicés
Patrocel, 8. A. Financing and interests
Shareholders with-significant
influenice over subsidiaries
BASF Sale of goods
BASF Sale of businasses
BASF ‘Leasing and administrative services.
Basell " ‘SBale.of goots
Basell Administrative services

At December 31,

016 2015

Ps - Ps 505
190 190"
115 115
5 10

7 11

1 =
. 5

468

112 102

635 1,443

2 1

25 12.

g’ 2.

B3 1101 Ps 2954
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Nature At Decamber 31
. _ of the transaction 2018 2015
Lona-term aceount receivables:
Holding. Cempany _ _
Alfa, S: A.B. deC. V. Financing and interests Ps 745 Ps -
Short-termi account pavables:
Atiiliates _ .
Alliax, 8. A. de C. V. Administrative services Pg 18 Ps 22
Nerhak Extetior, LTD -Administrative services 1 i
Alfa Corporativo, S. A: de C.V. Administrative services 16 38
Newpek, 5, A, Administrative services 3. -
Servicios Emprasariales
del Norte, 8. A. de C. Y. Administrative services 2 -
Alestra; 8. deR. L.de C. V. Adminisirative sérvices 2 -
Others Administrative services - 1
Associates o .
Clear Path Recydling, LLC- Financing and Interests 83 -
Termiinal Peirogquimica Altamira, _ _
8. A.de'C. V. ' Administrative services 1 -
Shareholders with sngmfncam
influenece over subisidiaries _ o
‘BASF Sale-of goods 1g 20
BASF Sale of raw materialg 164 161
BASF Commissions and cther 2 4
Basell Others 28 34
Fs S Ps 279
L.ong-term-account pavables:
Affiliates _ _ _ -
Alfa Corporative, S, &. de €. V. Administrative services Ps 4 Ps -

@ At December 31; 2016 and 2015, the loans granted bear an average fixed interest rate of 5.34%.and
4.51%, réspectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries declare that they neither had significant related party fransactions nor
conflicts of interest to disclose at December 31, 2016 and 2015,

Note g - Inventories _
At December 31,

2016 2015
Finished goods Ps 8419 Ps 5795
Raw material and other consumables: 4,924 5,082
Materials and tools 1,002 793
Work in process 508 418

Ps 14,853 Ps _ 12.086.

For the years ended at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the cost of raw materials consumed and the changes in
inveritories of work in process and finished goods recognized in the cost of sales amounted to Ps 76,943
and Ps 73,029, respeetively:

Page 44




Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
At December 31, 2016 and 2015

For the yedrs ended Deceniber 31, 2016 and 2015, it was recogiized in the Consolidated Statement of.
Incomie a provision amounting to Ps22 and Ps 28, respectively, related to damaged, slow-moving and

obsoléte inventory;
At December 31, 2016 and 2015, there were no inventories pledged as collateral.

Note 10 - Prepayments

The:current portion and non-current portion of prepaid expenses is summarized as follows:

At December 31.
2016 2015
Current portion () Ps 457  Ps 338
Noricurrent portion & 1,570 1,228
Total prepayments Ps 2027 Ps 1566

() This item mainly consists of advertising and prepaid insuranee,

) This item mainly represenis-advances on inventories for the fertheoming years related to supply rights,
as described in Note 2.a, in the amount of Ps 1,550 and Ps 1,102 at-December 31, 2016 and 2015,

respectively.
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Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
At December 31, 2016 and 2015

Incurred research and development expenses that have been recorded in the 2016 and soig consolidated
statements of income were Ps 62 and Ps 55, respectively..

Impairmert testing of goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to operating segments that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities-of the acquirer are assigned.to these units
or groups of units, goodwill arising from the Polyester segment for a-total of Ps 362 and Ps 297 at
December g1, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The amount of,recovery Trom the"opemtinglseg__ment_s'has been determined baséd on calculations of values
in use.. These calculations use cash flow projections based omn pre-tax financial budgets approved by
Management covering a period of 5 years.

The key assumptions used in ealculating the value in use in 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

2016 2015
Estimated gross:margin 6.3% 8.8%
Growth rate 0.0% 6.5%
Discount rate 9.0% 10.0%

with regard to. the calculation of the value in use of thé operating segments, the Company’s Management
considers that a possible change in the key assumptions used, would not cause that the carrying valae of
the operating segments exceeds materially its value in use.

Note 13 - Other assets

At December 31,

2016 Q15

Notes receivable. !} Ps 1882 Ps 170
Accounts receivable from related parties {Notg 8) 745 -
FFinancial assets available for sale @ 172 144
Total other non-current financial assets ' 2,299 254
Investment in associates @ _ 403 253
Total other assets Ps__ 2702 Ps _ 507

®  This item mainly consists ¢f a.1oan receivable that bears half-yearly interest at a 6. 99% rate (Libor +
5.3%), and matures in December 2019,

@) Financial assets availableé for sale

These assets are related to investments in companies notlisted on the market and for investments in
social clubs that represent less than 1% of the capital stock. The Company has not. recogtiized any
impairment loss at December 31, 2016.
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Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
At December 31, 2016 and 2015

The movement of financial assets available for sale is as follows:

2016 2015
Balance at January 1 Ps 144 Ps 129
Translation effect 20 15
Additions 8 N
Balance at December 31 Ps 172 Ps 144

Financial assets availdble for sale are denominated in the following currencies:

At Decembper31.
2016 2015
usD Ps 124  Ps 04
MXN _ 48 40
Total Ps 172 Ps_ 144

None of the financial assets available for sale are-expired or impaired.

G} Invesiment by associates

Following is presented summarized finanéial information of asseciated companies of the group that are
not significant, which are accounted for by the equity method:

2016 2015
Net loss (Ps 4 (Ps 71}
Other comprehensive. income _ (2) -
Comprehensive income (Ps B) (P 71)
Investment in associates at Decernber 31 Ps 403 Ps 253

‘There are neither commitments nor.contingencies liabilities regardmg the Company's investment in
associates-as of December 31, 2016.
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Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
At December 31, 2016 and 2015

Note 14 - Subsidiaries with significant non-controlling interest.

The significant non-controlling interest, is integrated as follows:

Non-cenirelling interest Non-controlling interest
Non-controliing income for the period at December 31,

ownership '

percentage 2016 2015 2016 2015
Indelpro, S. A. de _ .
C. V. and subsidiary 49% . Ps 1,101 Ps 699 Ps 3,631 Ps 2,917
Policles, S. A. de _
C. V. and subsidiary 50%. 251 216 474 1,153
Non-controlling pertion
of nopsignificant subsidiaties 16 2 544 475

Ps 1368 Ps 917 Ps_4649 Ps 4,545

The summarized f_inancial _infqrm_atipn_at__D.e_cember 31, 2016 and 2015 and for the year then ended,
corresponding to each subsidiary with a significant non-controlling interest is shown below:

indelpro, 5. A. de C: V. Polinles, S A. de.C. V.
and stibsidiary. and. subsidiary
_ 2018 2015 2016 2015
Statements of financial position '
Current asset Ps 3739 Ps 3527 Ps 2248 Ps 3976
Non-current asset 7,737 6,303 1,180 876
Gurrent liability 1,489 1,619 909 1,268
Non-current liability 2,577 2,348 1,540 1,277
Stockholders! equity 7A10 5,953 949 2,307
Siatemients of income
Revenues 11,891 10,084 3,517 4,599
Gonsolidated net profit _ ; 2,248 1,427 502 431
Comprehensiva icoma for the year 3,542 2,254 598 £49.
Cormnprehensive income attributable to
non-controfling interést 1,735 1,105 298 324
Dividends paid to the nan-contraliing _ _ )
Interast 1,022, 762 045 150
Statements of cash flows
Met cash flows generatéd {used) in opsrating activities 2,328 2,613 (460) (48)
Met cash flows: {uged) generated in investing activities- {444} {441} 1,967 {81)
Net cash flows used. in fihancing activities {2,356) {1,809} {1,702) {320}
{Decrease) increase in cash-and cash eguivalsits (394) a2 {227) (418)
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Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

At December 31, 2016 and 2015

Note 15 - Finaneial instruments

a. Financial instruments by catégory

At December 31,2016

Trade: Financial assats
receivables and _ and fiabilitizs at ~ Derivative
liabilities at: Available fair value designated
amortized for through - for
cost sale profit and loss. hedaing ofél
Financial assets:.
Cash and cash équivalenits Ps 2835 Ps - Ps = Ps ~ Pg 2,835
Restricted cash and cash equivalenis o - - - o2
Trade ang other receivable 15,618 - - 15,918
Derivaiive financial instrumants . - - 56 - 5B
Other assets 2127 172 - - 2,299
) ) Ps 20,082 -Ps 172 Ps - Ps 56-Ps_ 21210
Finangial liabilities:. : _ _
Debt _ _ Ps 24,338 Ps - Ps - Ps - Ps. 24,338
Suppliers and othér accounts payable 15,492 - - = 15,492
‘Bhared-based payments . - 31 - 31
Derivative finandial instruments - - 12 705 7
Ps.. 399830 Ps - Ps 43 PEs 705 Ps__ 40,578
At Decemnber 31, 2015
Trade Financial assets _
receivables and and liabilities at  Derivative
llakilities at Available fair value ‘designated
amortized far Jhrough: - for
Gost sale profit and loss. hadaing Total
Financial assets: o . o
Cash and cash equivalents Ps B850 Ps - Ps. - Ps --Ps 6,680
'Rasfricted cash and.cash equivalents -3 - ' - - '3
Trade and other receivable- 13,384 - - - 13,384
Derivative financial instruments - - 203 - 203
Other assets : 110 144 - - 254
Ps__ 20147 Ps 144 Ps__208 Ps - Pg 20,494
Finangial liabilities: _ _ '
Dabt P§ 18,954 Ps - Ps - Ps - Ps 18,954
‘Suppliers and other accounts payable 11,693 - - - 11,683
Shared-based payments - - 55 - 55
Derivative financial instruments - - 17 1,542 1.559
Ps_ 306847 Ps - Ps 72 Ps 1542 Ps 32261
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Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries

Notes to the consohdated financial statements
Al December 41, 2016 and 2015

b. Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired ¢an be assessed by reference to
external credit ratings (if avallable) orto hlStOI‘lCﬂl mtormatlon on non«comphance rates of the
counterparty:

At Degember 31,

2018 2015
Trade and other receivables
‘Counterparties with external.credit rating
"AL" Ps 1,589 Ps 1,569
IIA‘II 89 26
" 363 -
“AAAT 144 32
TAAY 515 43
“g" 6 8
BT 590 19
: {IB_II 22 -
"BBB+" 45 34
"BBB" 1,489 510
“BBB-" 29 -
"BB" 43 3
“BB+" 195 8
“BB-* 147 914
Other categories ' _ 18 235
5302 . 3,401

Gounterparties without external cradit rating.
Type of custoimers X 11,182 8,293
Type-of customers Y 382 986
Type of customers Z 28 -

it.8c2 | 8,279
Total het impairéd trade receivables Ps 18,904 Ps_. 12.680
Cash and.cash equivalents with or
without resfriction, riot including pefty cash
At Ps 11 Ps 34
A 1,393 762
PAT 738 2,485,
“BBB+" B24 2,470
"BBB" 167 148
"BBB-" - 1
"BB+" - 12
Without external creditrating : 3 733

Ps 2936 PBs 6,645

Derivative financial instruments

"A-T Ps 6 Ps 2
“BBB+" 10 8
“CCC” ; 163
“COC+" . 3z
“BBB" 30 “
i An. ?‘ . -
Without external credit rating 1 -
Ps 56 Ps 203
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Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
At December 31, 2016 and 2015

Group X ~ New customers/related parties (less than 6 moriths).
Group Y — Customers/related parties (inore than 6 months) without default in the past.

Group Z — Customers/related parties (more than 6 months) w1th some defaults in the past. All past-due
amounts were fully recovered.

¢. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
The amounts of 'ca'sh a'nd Ca'sh equivalents rest"ricted cash and cash' e‘qﬁivalénts c'u'stom‘t—:r's a'nd'(')th'er

appro*clmate to their fair value due to'their short maturlty 'I'he carrying arount of thiese aceounts
represents the expected cash flow at December 31,2016 and 2015.

The carrying amount and the estimated fair value of the rest of the financial assets and liabilities are.
presented as follows:

At December 31, At December-31,

2016 2015
Carrying Fair Carrying Fait
‘amount value amount valug
Financial assets . _ : :
Non-current receivable: Ps 2,127 Ps 2,131 Ps 110 Ps 100
Financiaf liabilities o o o o
Non-current dabt 21,551 21,946 18,276 17,865

The estimated fair values as of December 31, 2016 and 2015; were determined based on discounted cash

flows using rates that reflect-a similar credit risk depending on the currency, maturity pericd and country

where the debt was incurred. As part of the main rates used are the intérbank equilibrium interest rate
("TIIE") for the instruments in ‘pesos and Libor for instruments held in dollars. Thesé fair values do not

consider the current portion of financial assets.and liabilities, as'the current portion approximates their

fair value, This 1§ a measure of fair value of Level 3.
Note 16 - Derivative financial instruments

The effectiveness of derivative financial instruments designated as hedges is measured periodically. At
December 31, 2016 and 2015 the Company's Management assessed the effectiveness of its hedges for

-accounting purposes.and has concluded that they-dre highly.effective.

Notional amounts related to-derivative financial instruments reflect the contracted teferericevolime;

‘however they do hot reflect the amourits dt risk with respect to future c¢ash flows. The amounts at risk are
generally limited to the unrealizéd profit or loss from the market valuation of such inistruments, which

may vary accordmg to changesin the market value of the underlying; its volatlhty and the; credlt quality of
the counterparties.

The principal obligations which the Company is subjeet to:depends on the fype of contract and the

conditions stiptlated in each one of the derivative financial instruments in force at December 31,2016
dand 2015,
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Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries

Notes to the consohdated financial statements
At December 31, 2016 and 2015

Trading derivatives dre clagsified as current-assets or Habilities. The fair value of hedges is €lassified.as a
non-currentasset or liability if the maturity of the hedged item is greater than 12 months and as a current
asset or liability if the maturity of the hedged item is lesser ﬂ1an 12-months.

a) Exchange rafe derivatives

Derivative financial instruments related to exchange rate positions with trading accounting treatment
are-summarized as follows:

At December 31, 2016

Underlying
_ _ _ assel _ Maturity
Type-of derivative,  Notional Fair _ _ .
value or contract amount Unijt Reference value 2017 2018 2019+
USPH/MXN (Ps 186) Pesos/Dollar 20.66 (Ps 12) (Ps_12) Ps - Ps__ -

(Ps_12) (Ps_12) Ps - Ps__-

At-December 31, 2015

Underlying
B _ asset Maturity
Type of derivative,  Notional Fair
value or gontract amount Unit' Reference value 2016 2017 2018+
USD/MXN (Ps 688) Pesos/Dellar 17.21 (Ps 13 (Ps 18 Ps - Ps -
ARS/USD 800  Arg Ps/ Dollar 12.94 202 202 -

Ps 18 Ps 189 Ps - Ps -

b) Energy

Positions of derivative financial instruments natural gas, gasoline, ethylene, ethane, paraxylene and
brent crude, are summarized as follows:

At-Decarnber31.. 2016

Underlymg o

. asset Matrity
Type or derivative, Notional : _ ' Fair
“value or contract amount LUnit Referenge.  -valus 2017 2018 2019+
With hedge accounting ireatment: _ _
Ethylene® Ps' 850  CentDollar/ib 2533 Ps 20 Ps 20 Ps - Ps -
Natural gas 2,106  Dollar / MBTU 3.72 (646) - {187) {459)
Ethane ! -8 CentDollar/ Gallon 26.37 1 i - .
Px ! 2,850  Dallar/MT 795 (24) (24) - -

(Ps_B49) (Ps___3) (Bs187) (Bsds9)
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Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
At December 31, 2016 and 2015

At December 31, 2015

Underlying .

L asset _ . Maturity

Type orderivative;,  Netional - Fair . _
Valgg of contract amount Unit Reference vaiue 2018 2017 2018+

'With hedge accounting treatment: _ _
‘Ethylen’ Ps. 809 Cent Doflar/lb 18,22 (Ps 230) (Ps :230) Ps - Ps -
Natural gas ' 2,928  Dollarf MBTU 2.32 (961) (250)  (204) (507)
Ethane 48 Cen_t: Dolfar/Gallon  15.65 (5) (5} - -
Px ! 3,252 Dollar/MT 772 (309) (309} - -
Gasoline 72 Doliar / Gallon 1.25 {38) (38) -
‘With trade accounting tréatment _
Brent crude 5 Dollar/ BBL. 38.1 (2) (2) - _ -

(Ps1.545) (Ps 834) (Pa204) (Ps507)
1 Cash flow hedges.

‘The main obligations to which the subsidiaries are subject depend upon the contracting mechanism and

conditions stipulated in each one of the derivative financial instruments in effect at December 31, 2016
and 2015.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, thenet fair value of derivative financial instruments above: mentioned
amounts toPs 661 and Ps 1,356, respectlvely, which is shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position as follows:
Fair value
At December 31,

2016 2015
Current asset Ps 56 Ps 203
Current liability (71) . (848)
Non-current liability {646) (711)
Net position {Ps 661) (Ps___1.356)

At December 31, 2016 and 2015 there are no collaterals in derivative financial instruments.

Note 17 - Suppliers and other accounts payable

At December 31,
-_20'16 2015
Suppliers Ps 13,151 Ps 8,522
Shott-term employee benefits - 610 596
Payments-in advance fronm customers 45 66
Taxes different than income tax 600 659
Accourits payable to related parties (Note 8} 1337 279
Other adcounts payable and accrued expenses 750 572

Ps 15492 P& 11693

Page 55




Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
At December 31, 2016 and 2015

Note 18 - Provisions

-At January 1, 2015

Increases.
Payments
Translation effect

At December 31, 2015
Increases

Payments

Transiation effect
At December 31, 2016

Short-term provisions
Long-term provisions

At December 31

Hestructuring,  Indemnities
demolition and from
environmental  dismissal
remediaiion and others Others otal
Ps- 733 Ps 57 Ps - Ps 790
ot 33 33
(352 (29} (11) (392)
90 7 {5) a2
471 35 17 523
(210) (10) (6) (226)
69 5 ay 73
Ps 330 Ps 30. Ps i0 Ps 370
2018 2015
Ps 363 Ps 338
7 185
Ps 370 Ps_ 523

‘The provisions shown in' the above table.are mainly related tothe closure of the plant in Cape Fear located

in Wilmington, North Caroliha carried out in June'2013. The purpose of this ¢losure was-to improve cost
¢ompetitive, through distributing production to the most efficient plants in its productive network.

During 2016, the Company continued the works of dismantling and demolition of the plant in Cape Fear,

as was originally announced dumng 5019, At Deceniber 31, 2016, the balance of this provision amounts to
Ps 360 (UUS$17), which is in line with the initial estimate made by the Management will be disbursed over
2017 according tothe plan of dismantling and demolition of the plant.

Note 19 - Debt

Current;

Bank loans

Gurrent portion of non-current debt
Notes payable ®!

Interest payable

Current debt

Non-current:
Senior.Notes

‘Unsecured Bank loans

Total
Less; current portion of non-current debt
Non-current debt 2

At December 31.

2016 2015
Ps 2375 Ps 440
230 224
178 6
Ps 2787 Ps 678
Ps 19,877 Ps 16,369
2,104 2,131
21,781 18,500
(230) (224)
Ps 21,551 Ps 18276

Page 56




Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

At December 31, 2016 and 2015

) These items are repréesented by bank loans and current notes payable, and they bear interest atan
average rate of 2:21% and 2.39% at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The fair value of bank loans and notes payable approximates their current carrying amount, as the
impact of discounting is not significant.

@ The carrying amounts, terms and conditions. of non-current debt are as follows:

Qutstanding- Detit Balance at Balance &t Maturity
. credit issuance Intersst December 31 Dacember 31 date Interest

_Descn‘gtig_n Currancy _p\_aiance Cosls Bayable 20186 2015, DRMMIYY e
Senidr Nots 1444/ ) ) . o .

Reg. 5/ fixed rate USD  Ps13.406 Ps 84 Ps &7 Py 13389 Ps 11,137 20-Nov-22  4.80%
Sefiior.Nota {44A/ ) ) ) N
Reg. S+ fixed rate usp 8,199 43 182 6,268 5232 08-Aug-23  5:388%
Tatal Seniar Notes: 15,805 {127} 188 19677 46369

Bank loan, Libor +1.60% usp’ 1,023 - 1 1,034 851 '1_9AD_er,:-1 g 25%%
Bank loan, Libor +1.10% uso 413 . 2 415 346 02-Apr18. 1.95%
Barlk loan, BADLAR + 1.00%  AHS 100 - 2 102 122 O1-Apr20. 24.13%
Bank lgan, Fixed rate 19.00% ARS 26 - - 6 i3 02-Des-22. 19.00%
- Bank loan, Libor + 1,00% usp 355 - 2 358 409 14-Aug-18 1.77%
"@ank loan, Libor + 1.60% usD 168" - - 168 . 31-Jan-1g  2.22%
Bank foan, BADLAR+2,00%  ARS . - - - 34 03-0ct-16.  29.72%
Bank loan, Libor +1.18% Ush - - - - 345 ‘H-Apr17 151%
Total Unsectred Bank loans 2088 - 8 ; 2.104 . 2,13t

Total Pep{ 701 {Ps.127) Ps..207 Ps. 81781 P& 18,500

Af December 31, 2016, the annual maturities of non-eurrent debt are as follows:

_ 2021
2018 2018 2020 onwargs Total
Bank loans Ps 1488 Ps 557 Ps 18 Ps 10 Ps 2073
Sénior Notes - - - 19:478 19.478.

Ps _1.488 Ps B67 Ps 18 Ps__ 19488 Ps__ 21.551

Covenants:

Most of the existing debt agreements contain restrictions for the Company, primarily for the compliance
with certain financial ratios which mainly include:

4a) Interest hedge ratio: it is caleulated by dmdmg the proﬁt before financial result, net, share of result of
asscciates, income taxes, depreciation'and amortization (EBITDA) by the netinterest charges for the
last four quarters of the ana]yzed.pemod. Thiis factor canriot be lesser than 3:0.times.

b) Leverage ratio: defined as the result of dividing the consolidated net debt (current and non-current

debt; excluding debt issuance costs Iess restricted and unrestricted cash and cash equivalents) by the
EBITDA of the last fourguarters of the period analyzed. This factor cannot be greater than 3.5 times.
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Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
At December 31, 2016 and 2015

Additionally; there are other restrictions regarding incurring additional debt or taking loans.that require.
mortgaging assets, dividend payments and submission of financial information, which if not met-or
remedied within a specified period to the satisfaction of ereditors may cause the debt to become payable
immediately. During 2016 and 2015, the financial ratios were calculated according to the formulas set out
in the loan agreements, At December 31, 2016 and the date of issuance of thege financial statements, the
Company and its subsidiaries complied satisfactorily with such covenants and restrictions.

During the years ended December 31 2016 and 2015, there were not significant debt transactions, the
main increase is generated due to the exchange rate of the debt held in US dollars. The amounts shown in
the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows correspond to c¢redit lines utilized and paid diring the vear,
Note 20 - Employee benefits

‘The valuation of retirement plan employee benefits includes formal plans and constructive obligations

that covers all employees and is based primarily on their years.of service, current age and estlmated salary
at retirement-date.

“The prmmpal subsidiaries.of the Company hiave established irrevocable trust funds for payment of

pensions and seniority premiums and health-care expenses. The contributions in 2016 amounted to
Ps.33 (Ps 62 in 2015).

Following is a summiary of the main financial information of such employee benéfits:

‘At December 31,

Liakility for employees’ benefits:
-Pension benefits _ Ps 940 Pa. 858
Post-employment medical benefits _ 177 168
1,117 1,026
Defined contribution liability 110 82
Employees’ benefits in the consolidated statement of financial position Ps_ 1227 Ps__1,108
Charge to the consolidated income statement for:
Pension benefits _ _ (Ps 56) (Ps 61}
Rost-employment medical benefits _ {(B) (7)
(64) (68)
Remeasurement of obligations for employees’ benefits recognized in . )
the statement of comprehensive income for the year Ps. 100 (Bs 3)
Remeasurement of accumulated obligations for employees banefits (Ps 131} (Ps 231)

Pension benefits.

The Company operates defined bénefit pension plans based on employees” pensionable remuneration
and length of service. Most plans are externally funded. Plan-assets are held in trusts, foundations or
similar entities, governed by local regulations and practice in each country, as is the nature of the
relationship between the Company and the respective trustees {or equivalent) and their composition.
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At December 31, 2016 and 2015

The amouiits recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position; are determined as showni
below: '

_At Cecember 31,

2018 015
Present value of defined _ _
benefit obligations Ps 3964 Ps 3546
Fairvalue of plan assets {3.024) {2,688)
Employees’ benefits in the consolidated statement of financial positon - Ps 840 Ps 858
The movement in the defined benefit obligation during the year s as follows:
2018 2015
At January 1 : Ps 3546 Ps 3,280
Service cost 44 40
Interest cost 161 138
Remeasyrements: _
Gains (losses) from changes in financial assumptions. 48 {120)
l.osses from change.in demographic _
assumptions and experience adjustments (121) (17)
Translation effect. 618 482
Paid benefits- (309) (262)
Plan reductions (18) 1)
‘Settlements (8) (4)
At December 31 Ps 3964 Ps 3546
The movement in the fair value of plan assets for the year is as follows:
2016 2015
At January 1 (Ps 2,688) (Ps 2,524)
Interest income (126) (112)
Remeaguremenits returnon plan assets,_
excluding interest inconie {29) 1189
Translation effgct (434) (345)
Contributions (33) {(62)
Paid benefits 286 236.
At December 31 (Ps__3.024) (Ps__2688)

The amounts recorded in the statement of income for the years ended December 31 are-the following:

Service cost

Net interest cost.

Effect of reductions of plan and /or settlements

Total included in personal costs

2016 2015

{Ps 44)  (Ps  40)
{35) (26)
23 5

(Ps 56)  (Ps_ 81)
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The principal actuarial assumptions are as follows:

At December 31,

2016 2015
Biscount rate MX 7.75% MX 6.75%
_ US 3.88% US 4.08%
Inflation rate 3.50% 4.25%
Salary increase rate 4.50% 5.25%

The average life of defined benefit obligations is of 12.8 and 14.5 years at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

The sensitivity analysis-of the main assumptions for defined henefit obligations is as follows:

Eifect in_defined benefit obligations

Change in Increase’ Decrease

assumption in assurnption ‘in assumption
Discount rate- MX 1% Decreases by Ps 18 Inicreases by Ps 22
Discount rate US1%  Decreases by Ps 366 Increases by Ps 441

Prior sensibility anatyses are based on'a change in assumptions, while the all other assumptions remain
constant. In practice, this is slightly probable, and the changes in some dssumptions may be correlated. In
the caleulation of the sensibility from the defined benefit obligation, significant actuarial assumptions the

same methed {present value of calculated defined benefit obligation with the projected umit credit method

at reporting period} has been applled as in the caleulation of liabilities for pensions recognized within the
consolidated statement of finaneial position.

' Post-employment medical benefits

The Company has post-employment medical benefits schemes mainly in DAK-Americas. The method of
accounting; assumptions and the frequency of valuations are similar to those used for defined benefit
pension schemes. Most of these plans are not being funded.

'In addition to the assumptxons above mentioned, the main actuarial assumption it is a long-term increase

in heatth cosis by 8.0% in-2016 and 6,7% in 2015.
Amounts recf}gnized in the statement of financial position are detefmined asfollows:

At December 31,

018 2015

Present value of defined o
benefit-obligations. Ps. 177 Ps 168
Fair value of plan assets - -

Employees’ benefits in the consolidated statement of financial position Ps._ 177 Ps.__168
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The movements of defined benefit obligations are as follows:

At January 1

Service cost

Interest cost

Employee contributions
Rerneasurements:.

Gain fram ¢changes in financial assumptions
Gains from changes in demographic
gssumptions and experience adjustments
Translation effect

Plan reductions

Paid benefits.

At December 31

Ps 168 Ps 154

2 )
6 5
18 16
- (5)
1 o5
32 24
{50} {53)

Ps 177 Ps__ 168

The amounts recorded in the consolidated statement'of income for the years ended Decémber 31-are the

following:

Service.cost
Net interest cost
Effect of reductions on plan and/or settiements

Total included in personal costs

2016 015

(Ps 20 (Ps 2
(6) {5)

Ps 8 (Ps._7)

At December 31, 2016, the effect of 4. 1% fluctuation in the incremental rate of medical expénses is as

follows:

Effect in defined benefit obligation
Employee benefits

Plan assets are comprised as follows:

(nvestment funds (listed)
Cash and cash equivalents

RHate
Increase Decredse
13 1)
At December 31,
016 2015

Ps 1,962 Ps 1,738
1,062 949
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Note 21 - Deferred income taxes

The analysis of the deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability is as follows:

Deferred tax asset:
- To be recovetred for more than 12 months.
- To be recovered within 12 months

Deferred tax liability: _
- To be payable for more than 12 months
- To be payable within 12 months

Deterred tax, net

The gross movement-in the deférred intome tax accotnt is as follows:

At January 1

Translation effect

Business acquisitions-

Credit to.consolidated income statement (Note 30)

Tax related to other items of comprehensive income (Note 30)

At December 31

At December 31,
016 2015
Ps 364 Ps 243
69 118
433 361
(6,902) {4,579)
i9 (128)
(5.883) (4.707)
{Ps__ 5450) (Ps__4.346)
2016 2015
(Ps  4,346) (Ps  3:999) -
(1,033) (598)
82 {84)
145 203
(298) 130
(Ps___5450) {Ps.. 4.346)

“The change of the temporary differences that requires deferred income tax recognition for the year ended

Decemiber 31, as follows:

Provisions .
Derivative financial instruments
Tax loss carryforwards

Total deferred tax asset.
[riventorias’

Property, plant and equipment, net
intangible assets, net

Other temporary differences, net
Total deferred tax liability

Net deferred tax liability

016 2015
Ps 139 Ps: 262
124 4
1,798 1,500
2,061 1768
(Ps 66} (Ps 53)
(6,328) (5,464)
- {442) (289)
(675) (306)
(7.511) (8:112)
(Ps 5450) (Ps__4.348)
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At December 31,2016, the Company has accumulated tax logs carryforwards for a total of Ps 5,993
expiring as shown below:

Amortizable _
Loss incurred tax loss Maturity
Inthe year carryforwards dateg

2007 Ps 187 2017
2008 138 2018
2009 162 2019
2010 162 2020
2011 595 2021
2012 194 2022
2013 52 20238
2014 838 2024
2015 2,773 2025
2616 : 892 Subsequent

Ps 5993

Note 22 - Income tax payable

Due'to the elimination of the tax-consolidation regime in Mexico, the Comipany decided 1o incorpordte

‘itself intd the new opﬁonal Regime for Groups of Companies beginning in 2014. This regime consists of

groupmg companies with specific characteristics, which have the possibility of deferring part of the tax on
earnings payable in three years, The deferment pércentage is calculated by using a factor determined in
aceordance with the:amount of taxableincome and tax loss in the year.

‘Income tax payable is summarized as follows:

At December 31,

2016 2015
Current portion Ps 694 Ps 1,371
.Non-current pottion _ 553 28
Total income tax payable. Bsi.247 Ps1.399

Note 23 - Other liabilities _
At December-31,

016 2015
Deferred income @ Ps 500 Ps 452
Other 4 .
Total other liabilities Ps_504 Ps_452

() "This jtem corresponds to revenues charged in advance and relates to thé future delivery of goods.
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Note 24 - Stockholders' equity

At Decemtber 31, 2016, the capita1 stock is variable, with a fixed minimum. of Ps 6,048 represénted by
2,118,163,635 ordinary, nominative shares, "Class. I" Séries "A",-with no par value, fully'subscribed and

‘paid in. The variable capital entitled to withdrawal will be represented if issued,; by registered "Class 11"

Series "A" shares without par value.

During 2016, the Company repurchased 1,526,384 shares in the amount of Ps-46, in connection with a
repurchase program that was approved by the Company's stockholders and exercised discretionally by
Management. At December 31, 2016, the Company holds 1,526,384 treasury shares, and the market value
ofthe share was Ps:24.77 pesos,

The net income of the year s subjéct to decisions made by the Gerieral Stockholders' Meeting, the
Company's by-laws and the General Law of Mercantile Corporations. In accordance with the General Law
of Mercantile Corporations, the legal reserve should be increaséd annually by 5% of the nét annual income
until it réaches 20% of the fully paid in capital stock. At December 31, 2016 and 20615, the legal reserve
amounts to Ps 514 and Ps 377, respectively. - o '

At the General Ordinary Meeting of Alpek held on February 24, 2016, the Stockholders resolved to declare
cash dividends on March 4, 2016 in a total amount ef Ps 1,959.

In the Ordinary General Meeting of Alpek held on April 15, 2015, the stockholders agreed to declare
dividénds in cash for & total of Ps 1,473,

Thé Incomie Tax Law establishes a tax rate of 10% to the dividends paid to foreign residents and Mexican
individuals derived from the profits generated since 2014, also provides that for the years 2001-2013, the
net taxable profit will be determined in terms of the Income Tax Law in force in the fiscal year concerned.

The movements in other reserves for 2616 and 2015 are shown as follows:

Effect of
Effect from cash flow
foreign hedge
curréncy detivative
translation ‘instruments Total
At January 1, 2018 Ps 2755 (Ps.  B10) Ps 2,145
Losses on fairvalue - {529) {529y
Deferred tax asset on fair valug losses. - 129 128
Galn from translation of foreign entities 3,843 - 3,843
At December 31, 2015 6,508 (1,010) 5,588
Gains on fair value - 646 646
Deferred tax asset.on fair value gains - (262) {262)
Gain from translation:of foreign entities 6,233 = 6,233
At December 31, 2016 Ps 12,831 (Ps 626) Ps_ 12,205
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Foreign currency translation.

'In this caption, the effect of foreign exchange'-differences' arising from the translation of {inancial

statements of 'foreign subsidiaries are recorded.
Effect of derivative financial instrumerits

The effect of derivative financial instruments contracted as eash flow hedges contains the effective portion.
of cash flow hedges at the reporting date.

The Board of Directors and Executive Officers of the Comp__any-do not own more than 1% of its capital,
Furthermore, none of the shareholders own'more than 10% of its capital, ot have significant influencé or
control or have power to'govern the Company.

Dividends paid are not subject to income tax if they derived from the Net Tax Profit Account (CUFIN
Spanish-acronym): Any dividends paid in excess of this account will cause a tax equivalent to 42.86% if
they are paid in 2017, This tax is payable by the Company and may be credited against its income tax in
thie saine year or the following two years: Dividends paid from profits which have previotsly paid income
tak are not subject to tax withholding or to any-additional tax payment. At December 31, 2016, the tax
value of the consolidated CUFIN and value of the Capital Contribution Account (CUCA Spanish acronym)
amounted to Ps.1,879 and Ps 18,038, respectively,

Note 25 — Shared-based payments

Alpek has a stock based compéensation scheme referred to at 56% of the value of stack of its holding
company and the other 50% of the value of shares of Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V.. for directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries. In accordance with the terms of the plan, the eligible directors will obtain acash
payment contingent upon achieving both quantitative and qualitative metrics derived from the following

-financial measures:

» Improved share price
* Improvement in net income
s Permanence of the executives in the Company

The program consists in determining a number of shares which the executives will have a right to, that
will be paid in'cash over the next five years; i.e., 20% every year-and will be paid at the average price of the
sharé at the end of each year,

The average price of the shares in pesos used as reference is:

Alfg, S.A.B.de C. V. Ps 26.73 Ps 34.30
Alpek, :S; A B.daC. V. 26.10 23.48
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The short-term and long-term abilities are comprised as follows:

At December 31;

20186 2015
Short-term Ps 10 Ps 18
Long-term 21 37
Total carrying amount Ps 31 Ps 55

Note 26 - Expenses classified by their nature,

The total cost of sales-and selling and administrative expenses, classified by the nature of the expensg, are

comprised as follows:

2016 2015
Raw materials and others (Ps 80,308) (Ps  58,782)
Employee benefit expenses (Note 28) (4,227} {3,799)
Human resource expenses (54) (78)
Mamtenance _ _ {1,411) (1,083)
Depreciation-and amortization (2,560) (2,254)
Advertising expenses 3) (2}
Freight charges (4,325) (8,865)
Energy. consumptton and fuel {gas, electricity, etc.) (3,514) (2,885)
Travel expenses (170} (132)
Operating lease expenses _ _ {775) (639)
Technical assisiance, professional fees and administrative services’ {937) (1,042)
Others (insurance and finance, water, containers and packaging, eta.) (2.283) {1,6786)
Total : {Ps._80.564) (Bg_ 76,245
Note 27 - Other income (expenses), net
Other income (expenses) for-the years ended December 31, are comprised as follows:

2016 2015
Gain on saleof wastes _ Pg: 3 Ps. g
Gain on sale of property, plant and equiprent 1 382
Impairment of property, plant and equipment - 2 {130}
Valuation of derivative financial instruments - (B)
Expenses.related to acqm5|t|on projects {5) -
Gain on business acquisition 36 -
Income from a loss recovery (1 112 -
Other income. 80
Other expense - (10)
Total Ps 235 Ps_ 245

@ Thisitem represents the recovery of a plant insurance of DAK Argentina
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Note 28 - Finance 'income and costs

Finatice cost, net for the yéars ended December 31, are comprised as follows:

Finance income:

Interest income on short-term bank deposits
Interest income on loans from related parties
Other finance income

Foreign exchange gains

Galns for changes-in the fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss

Total finahce income

Finance tosts:

Interest expense on loans from related parties
Interest expense on bank loans

Non-bank interest expense

Interest cost on employees benefits, net
Other finance .expenses {factoring and others)
Foreign exchange loss

Total finance costs

Finance cost, net

Note 29 - Employee benefit expenses

Employee benefits expenses for the years ended December 31, afe integrated as follows:

Salaries, wages.and benefits
Social security contributions

Employee benefits (Note 20}
‘Other contributions

Total

Note 30 - Income taxes

Income tax for the years ended December 31, is integrated as follows:

Total current income. tax

Adjustment to the provision of income tax from prior years’

Total deferred tax

ihcome taxes.

2016 2015
Ps 150 Ps 188
44 42
87 15
4 183
Ps___3565 Ps 2795
(Ps 1) Ps .
(143) (128)
(926) (787)
(44) (31)
(300) (230)
(4.660) (3.481)
(Ps.. 6.074) (Ps__4,657)
(Ps___2,509) {Ps__1.862)
2016 2018
(Ps  §102) (Ps 2,854)
(304) (262)
{22) (37)
(799) (646)
(Ps__4227) (Ps__3.799)
2016 2015
(Ps  2,470) (Ps 2,252)
(33) 9
145 203
(Ps___2358) (Ps_ 2,040)
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The reconeiliation between the statutory and effective income tax rates for the- years erided December: 31,
is as follows:

2016 2015
Profit before income tax Ps 7,381 Ps 5705
-Statutory tax rate 30% B0%
Income tax at statutory rate (2,205) {1,711)
Add (deduct) effect of income tax on:
Annual inflation adjustment {7 (236)
Non-deductible expenses (24) (21)
‘Non-faxable income 27 5
Effect of different tax:
rates of countries other than Mexico. 51) {79)
Adjustment to the income taxes liability of prior years (33)" 9
Share of losses-of associates {1) {7
Total income taxas (Ps_ 2.358) (Ps__2,040)
Effective tax rate. 32% 36%

The charge (credit) to income tax related to other items of the comprehensive income for the years-ending
December 31; are as follows:

2016 _ 2015
) Tax Tax
Befora charge. Aftar Before “tharge After
faxes {eredit)- taxes taxes {ecredit) taxes
Translation effect of lforeign curency Ps 5,233 Ps - Ps 6,233 Ps3,843 ‘Ps - Ps3,843
Remgasurement-of obligations ) .
Jor-employes henafits. 100. (35) 84 {3} - {3
Effect of denvalive financial instruments: ) . .
for hedging piiposes of cash flow ‘B4B {262) 354 {530) 130 {400)
‘Share of other eompeahensive ) o ’
results of associates (2} - {2 _ -
‘Cthercompreherisive income items Ps 6977 (ba_298) Bs €678 Ps3.310) Ps 130 Bs3.440
Defarred fax’ iBs..298) Bs 120

Note 31 - Segment reporting

Segment reporting is presented, consistently with the internal report provided to the Chief Operating

Officer, who has been identified as the Company’s Executive Director, and represents the highest
authority in operational decision maklng, allocation of résources and performance assessment of.
operatmg segments.

An operating segment is defined as a component of an entity on which séparate financial information is

regularly being evaluated.
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Management controls and assesses.its operations through two business segments: the Polyester business’
chain and the Plasties and Chemicals business. These ségments are-managed separately since its products:
vary and targeted markets are different. Their activities are performed through various subsidiaries.

The operations between operating seginents are-performed at market value and the accounting policies
with which the financial information by segments is prepared, are consistent with those described in
Note 3.

The Company has defined the Adjusted EBITDA as the calculation‘of adding 6perating income,
depreciation, amortization, ahd noncurrent asset impairment,

The Company evaluates the performarce of each of the operating segmentsbased on Adjiisted EBITDA,
considering that this indicator is a good metric to evaluate operating performance and thé ability to meet.
principal and interest obligations with respect to indebtedness, and the ability to find capital
expenditures and working capital requirements. Nevertheless, Adjusted EBITDA is not a measure of

financial performance under IFRS and should not be considered as an alternative to net inconie as a )

measure of operating performance or cash flows as a meastire of liguidity.
Following is the condensed finaneial information of these operatifig segments;

Forthe year ended December 31, 2016:

P'iast'i_cs

and |
Statement of income: Polyester Chemicals Cthers Total
Revenue by segment . Ps 64,336 Ps 26,151 (Ps 295)  Ps90,192
Inter-segment revenue (85) (200 __ 295 -
Revenue from externial costumers: Ps 84,241 Ps 25951 Ps.__ - Ps 90,192
Operating profit Ps 4,487 Ps 5413 (Ps -87) Ps 9,863
Depreciation, amortization-and . _
im_pai_rment of nan-current assets 2.027 535 - 2,562
Adjusted EBITDA Ps . 6514 Ps 5948  (Ps_37) Ps12.425
Capex Ps 5234 Ps. 747 Ps - Ps_ 5,981
Fort'the year ended December 31, 2015

Plastics:
. and
Statement of income: Polvester Chemicals Others Total
Revenue by segment Ps 60,852  Ps 23,070  (Ps 332) Ps 83590
Inter-segment revenug (83) (249) . 332 -
HRevenue from external costumers Ps_ 60,769 Ps 22,821 Ps - Ps_83.590
Operating profit- Ps 3,583 Ps 3,961 Ps 46 Ps 7,590
Depreciation; amortization and _ o
impairment of non-current assets 1,837 547 - 2.384
Adjusted EBITDA Ps 5420 Ps_ 4508 Ps 46  Ps_ 0974
Capex Bs_.3.979 Ps 503 Ps - Ps 4482

Page 69




Alpek, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
At December 31, 2016 and 2015

The reconciliation between adjusted EBITDA and profit hefore taxes for the years ended Decenibera1is
as follows:

2016 2015
Adjusted EBITDA Ps 12,425  Ps 9,974
Depreciation, amortization and impafrment of non-Gurrent assets (2,562) {2,384)
Operating profit 9,863 7,590
Financial cost, nét (2,509) (1,862)
Share-of losses in associates 3y __ (23)
Income before taxes Ps_7.351 Ps5705

Following is a summary of revenues per country of origin for the years ended December 31:

2016 2018
Mexico Ps 43,657 Ps 40,986
United States 38,271 36,455
Argentina 4,405 4,762
Brazil 1,301 853
Chile 766 369
Canada 792 165
Revenues Ps 90,192 Ps83590

The Company's main costumer.generated revenue amounting to Ps 8,654 and Ps 5,706 for the vears
ended December 31,2016 and 2015, respectzve}y This revenue is obtamed from the Polyester reporting
segment and represents 10% and 11% of the consolidated revenue with external costumers for the years

-ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively,

The{ollowing table shows the intangible assets and property, plant and equipment by country;

At Decemnber 31,

2016 2015
Mexico Ps 2,344 Ps 2,182
United States 9,524 B,675
Chile 6 -
Canadg 1 -
A‘rge‘ntiha‘ _ 5
Totdl intangible assets Ps_11.875 Ps. 8812
Mexico Ps 30,511 Ps 23,791
United States 8,425 6,863
Canada 268 -
Argentina 349 328
Chile 318 233
Brazil | 128 107
Total property, plantand equipment Ps_40.699 Ps.31.822
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Note 32 - Commitments and continigeitcies
At.DeCemBer.gl,' 2016, thé Company has the followirig commitments:

a. The Company through its subsidiary Grupo Petrotemex, signed a contract with M&G (see Note 2)
related to:supply rights of the plant for 500 thousand tons of PET (manufactured with 420 thousand
tons of PTA) per yedr. Grupo Petrotemex has compléted the payments amounting to Ps 8,989
(US$435), of which Ps 7,439 (US$360) are recognized in the intangible assets that correspond to the
‘before mentioned supply rights, and will be amortized oncethe supply of PET begins and Ps 1,550
(US$75) as a prepayment of inventory within the prepayments caption. See Note iz. )

b. On December 15, 2014, the Company through its subsidiary DAX (seé Note 2) entered into:a Toll
Manufacturing Agreement with Huntsman in which will obtain supply rights of Monoethylene Glycol
(MEG). Onthe other hand, DAX paid US$65 to Huntsman duringthe installation of the equipment

‘according toan established calendar and in comipliance with certain milestones, Huntsman will
develop, own and operate the-equipment for the production of MEG in its Port Neches, Texas plant
and DAK will supply the raw materials for the production. The installation of equipment and
beginning of production took place during the month of June 2016, thus, DAK obtained supply rights
up.to28.8 million of pounds of product per year for a 15 years period commencing on the first day of
the month in which the equipment was installed and the production began. '

c. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the subsidiaries had entéred into various agreements with suppliers:
-and customers for purchases of raw materials nsed for production and the sale of finished goods,
rtespectively. The term of these agreements varies between one and five years and generally contain
price adjustment clauses. '

d. InSeptember 2007, Indelpro renewed an-agreement it had held with PEMEX Refinacién to-coverthe
supply of propyléne for the themical and refining area maturing in 2018, such agreement establishes
the obligation to purchase the maximurm level of production available at a referenced market prices.
Puichases of propylene during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 amounted to.Ps 2,917
and Ps 2,896, respectively. The purchase commitment for the year 2016 amounts to approximately
Ps 3,193 and is based on the volume of purchases made during 2015. "

e. The Company leases equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements, related mainly to
transportation equipment for the PTA and PET businesses, which normally include renewal options.
These options are generally under the same conditions of the existing leases.

Future payments under these operating léase agreements with non-cancellable terms greater than a
‘yearare summarized below:

1 year Ps 483
Betwesn 1 y 5 years 1477
More.thah 5 years 1,022

At December 31, 2016, the Company has the following contingencies:

a) Duringthe normal course of the business, the Company may be involved in disputes-and litigations.
While the results of these can’t be predjcted, the Company does not believe that thete are actions
pending to apply, claims or legal proceedings against or affecting the Company which, if it will result
in an adverse resolutionto the Company, would negatively impact the results of its operations or its
financial position. ' '
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b) Some of the subsidiaries usé hazardous materials to manufacture polyester filaments and staple
Afibers, polyéthylene terephthalate (PET) and terephthalatic acid (PTA) resin, polypropylene (PF)
resin, expandable polystyrene (EPS), caprolactam (CPL), chemical specialties and they generate and
dispase of waste, such as catalysts-and glycols. These.and other activities of the subsidiaries are
‘subject to various federal, state-and local laws and regulations governing the generation, handliag,
storage; treatment and disposal of hazardous substances and wasteés, Aecording to such laws, the
owner or lessor of real estate property may be lable for, among other things, (i) the costs of removal
or remediation of certain hazardous ortoxic substances located on, in, or emanating from, such
property, as well as the related cost of investigation and property damage and substantial penalties for
violations of such law, and (ii) énvironmental contarnination of facilities where its waste is or has
been disposed of. Such laws impose such Tiability without regard to whether the owner or lessee knew-
of, or was responsible for, the presénée of suich hazardous or toxie substances.

Although the subsidiaries estimate that there are no existing material liahilities relating to-
noncompliance with environmental laws and regulations, there can be nio assurance that there are ng
undiscovered potential liabilities related to histaric or current operations that will require o
investigation and/or remediationunder environmental laws, or that futuré tises or conditions will not.
resuilt in the imposition of an environmenta] liability or exposethemto third-party or related parties
actions, such as'tort suits. Furthermore, thére can be no assurance that changes in environmental
regulations in the future will not require the subsidiaries to make significant capital expendituresto
change methods of disposal of hazardous materials or otherwise alfer aspects of their operations.

Note 33 - Subseguent évents

In préparing the financial statements the Company has evaluated. the events and transactions for their
recognition or disclosure subsequent to December 31, 2016 and through February 17,2017 (date of
{ssuznce of the financial statements), and has concluded that there are no subsequent events affecting

them.

/ ) . / . . .
José deflestns Valdez Simiancas
Chief Executive Officer

Page 72




